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Vision
To be a Company recognized for its art of Textile
and best business practices.

Mission & Values

The mission of Company is to-operate state of the art
Taxtile plants capable of preducing yarn and fabrics.

The Company will conduct its operations prudently
assuring custorner satisfaction and will provide
praofits and growth to its shareholders through:

* Manufacturing of yarn and fabrics as per the
customers' requirements and market demand.

® Exploring the global market with special
emphasis on Europe, USA and Fareast.

& Keeping pace with the rapidly changing
technology by continuously balancing,
modernization and replacement {BMR} of plant

~and machlnery

» Enhancing the'profitabilit'y by improved
efficiency and ¢ost controls,

Pratecting the environment and cofitribiuting
lowards the economic strength of 1he country
and functio




Notice is hereby given that the 28th Annual Gener

al Meeting of Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd will be held at 2nd Floor
Trust Plaza L.M.Q. Road Multan, on Monday Oc

tober 29, 2018, at 11:30 a.m. to transact the following business:

) Ordinary Business;
1. Te confirm the minutes of the last Extra-ordinar
2. To receive, cansider and adopt the Com
of the Auditors and Directers thereon.

3. To approve and declare dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018 on the Ordinary Shares of the Company. The Directors have
recommended a final cash dividend of 22.50 % (i.e. Rs.2.25 per share} an the Ordinary Shares.

4. To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration., M/s Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri
retire and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

>- Any other business with the permission of Chairman.
Speclal Business:

1. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the followi
modification, addition(s) or deletion(s).

Y General Meeting held on Octaber 08, 2018,
pany’s Financial Statements for the vear ended lune 30, 2018, together with the Reports

, Chartered Accountants,

ng resolution under Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without

“Resolved by way of special resolution that consent of the shareholders of Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd (the “Company”) be and is

hereby accorded under Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017 (the "Ordinance”) for investment in associated company as per
following detail in the form of working capital loan for a period of three Years on revolving basis starting from the date of approval
by Shareholders provided that the return on any outstanding amount of loan shall be KIBOR plus 2.50% {which shall not be less than

- the average borrowing cost of the Company) and as per other terms and conditions of the agreement to be executed in writing and
as disclosed to the members.

5.No. Name of the company Amount of Loan

1. Fatima Energy Ltd (FEL) 100 Million
2 Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd {FSML). 300 Million
3. Reliance Commadities (Pvt) Ltd (RCL). 100 Million
4.

Fatima Transmissian Company Ltd (FTCL) 100 Million

FURTHER RESOLVED that the said resolution shall be valid for thr

ee year starting from the date of approval by shareholders and any
Director/Chief Executive Officer and/ar Chief Financial Officer a

nd/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby singly
empowered and authorized to undertake the decisian of said investment as and when required by above companies and to take all

steps and actions necessary, incidental and ancillary including execution of any and all documents and agreements as may be

required in this regard and to do all acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of
implementing the aforesaid resalution.

2. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the fellowing resolution under Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without
modification, addition(s) or deletion(s).

“Resalved that in continuation of our previous resalution

Agreement” by way of special resolution that consent of the
hereby accorded to renew the Resolution up to the settlemen
Further resolved that consent of the shareholders of Relianc
to the Financial Institutions of FEL the amount as per their de

passed on dated June 12, 2017 against signing of “Sponsors Sport
shareholders of Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd (the “Company”) be and is
t of the liabilities of the company (FEL) towards the Financial Institutes.
e Weaving Mills Ltd {the “Company”} be and is hereby accorded to pay
mand and will consider that amount in the loan of the FEL”,

3. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the followin
rmodification, addition{s) or deletion(s).

"Resolved that transactions carried out in the ordinary course of busi
June 30, 2018 be and hereby ratified, approved and confirmed,
Further Resolved that the Chief Executive of the Com
during the financial year ending June 30, 2019.

g resclution under Section 208 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without
ness with the Related Parties during the financial year ended

pany authorized to approve transactions with Related Parties to be carried

Note. Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd holds foilowing shares in associated companies

Fatima Energy Ltd 80,016,370
Fatima Transmission Campany Ltd 7,187,500
. Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd Nil

Reliance Commodities {Pvt} Ltd Nil




The following directors and g
Fatima Sugar mills Ltd
1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar

pansors of RWML hold shares in these companies as detailed below:
No. of Shares  Rellance Commodities (Pvt) Ltd No. of Shares

1 1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar 1
2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh 1 2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh 1
3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 1 3. Mr, Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 1
4. Mrs. Fatima Faza) 1
- 5, Mrs. Farah Faisal 1
6. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar 1
Fatima Energy Ltd No. of Fatima Transmission Company Ltd No. of
1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar 1 1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar 1
2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh 1 2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Shaikh 1
3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 1 3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 1
4. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar 1
By, rder of the Board
Dated: 07.10,2018
Aftab AlrRed tyafs Place: Multan

(Company Secretary)

1. Share Transfer Books will be closed from October 23, 2018 to October 29
will be accepted for registration. Transfers in good order,
19- Khyaban-e-Aiwan-e-!qbal » LSE Plaza Lahore by the ¢

transfer and entitled to attend and vote at the meeting &

, 2018 (both days inclusive} when no transfer of shares
received at the office of Company's Share Registrar M/s CDC Pakistan Ltd,
lose of the business on October 22, 2018 will be treated in time for the
payment of any entitlement approved in meeting.

3. An instrument of proxy and a Power of Attorney or other authority (

Power of Attorney must be valid and deposited at the following addres
hours before the time of the Meeting.

4, Those shareholders whose shares ar

if any) under which it is signed, or notarized copy of such
s of the Share Registrar of the Company, not less than 48

passport, Account and Participant's I.D. numbers must be deposited along with the Form of Proxy
Proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with speci
be produced at the time of the meeting,

5. Change of address Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to cur Share Registrar.

6. Please be informed that SECP vide its Notification No. SRO.831 (1)2012 of 5th July, 2012 has made mandatory far Companies to
provide CNIC number of registered shareholder on the dividend warrant and other ¢

foregoing, those shareholders who have not yet submitted a valid copy of their Compu

with our Share Registrar, In case of

Companies as under:

(a) For Filers of Income Tax Return 15%. & (B) For Non-Filers of Income Tax Return 20
deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 20% all the shareholders wh
Tax-payers List {ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers,
are entered into ATL befare the start of book closure date for entitlement otherwise tax
20.0% instead of 15%.

(i) For any query/problem{information, the investor rmay contact the Share Registrar: CDC Paklstan Ltd, phone number: 042-
36362017, or e-mail at basharat.hashml@fatima-group.com.

(iii) The corporate shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or its Share Registrar M/s CDC Pakistan
Ltd, 19- Khyaban-e-Aiwan-e-lqbal » LSE Plaza Lahore if it has not yet been provided. The Shareholders while sending NTN or NTN
certificates, as the case may be, must quote Company name and their respective folio/COC Account numbers.

According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined separately on
‘Filer/NonFiler' statys of Principal Sharehotder as well as Joint Halder(s) based on their shareholding proportians, in case of jeint
holding/joint account. In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders, are requested to provide
shareholding proportions of Principal Shareholder and JointHolder(s) in respect of shares held by them, to Company's Share

Registrar, M/s CDC Pakistan Ltd, in writing, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder
" and Joint - Holder(s).

%. To enable the Company to make tax
0se names are not entered into the Active
are advised to make sure that their names
on their cash dividend will be deducted @




panies Act 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall on
into the bank account of shareholders, In ord

bank details of each shareholder. The C
complete information {NiC and ete.).
Shareholders are requested to provide complete detail of their Ba
which Dividend amount could be electronically transferred. It is to be noted that the fottowing information are must, when applying
for e-Dividend;

1) IBAN number, 2) Title of Bank Account;, 3) Bank Account number;4) Bank Code and Branch; Code, 5) Bank Name, Branch Name
and Address; 6) Cell/tandline Number; 7) CNIC number; and 8) Email Address.

ly be paid through electronic mode directly
er to process the dividend payment in electronic form, issuers will be required to have

ompany may withhold the payment of dividend where the member has not provided the

9. 3ECP vide SRO No. 787(1} 2014 dated 8th September, 2014 has allowed companies to circulate the audited financial statements
basharat.hashmi@fatima«groug.com and notice of Annual General Meeting to shareholders thro i i j

10. Video Conference Facility for Attending General Meetings With reference to the SECP's Ci
2014 ('the Circular'), members may avail video conference facility in Karachi
requirements and procedures of the Circular,

The members should provide their
days before hoiding of AGM.
Consent Form for Videa Conference Facility

I/We, of , being a member of Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd, holder of

shares as per Register Folio/CDC Account No. hereby opt for video conference facility at
(geographical location).

signature of member

If the Company receives 10 days prior to meeting date, censent from members holding minimum 10% shares residing at a
. Beographical location, to participate in the meeting threugh video conference, the Company will arrange video conference facility in

that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference
facility at least 5 days before the date of Annyal General Meeting.

11. The Annual report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 has been

12, Any change of address of Members should be immediatety notified to the Company's Share Registrars, M/s CDC Pakistan Ltd,

13. Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/physical shares are advised to contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire
, If any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after having completed

¥

» Lahere, Islamabad, subject to fulillment of the

consent as per the following format and submit to the registered address of the Company, 10

Ordinary

placed on the Company's website,

- enhance the return on funds available with the Company,

The directors of the Company certify/undertake that the Proposed investment is being recommended after due diligence and
financial health of the borrowing company is such that it has the ability to repay the loan as per agreement. The duly signed
recommendation of the due diligence report and directors undertaking/certificate shall be made available to the members faor
inspection at the meeting,
Special Item No.2. The Company passed a special Resolution in June 12, 2017 against signing of Sponsors Sport Agreement with the
Lenders of FEL including Habib Bank Limited, Bank Alfalah Limited and othar financial institutions against issuance of Finance and
Bave guarantee to these lenders to issue {oan and in case of default RWML will pay all the obligations up to the agreed percentage.
As per (Investment in Associated Coempanies or Associated Undertakings) Companies Regulations, 2012 the resclution is being
needed to be renewed up to final settlement of the all loans by FEL to Banks that's why company intends to pass such resolution,

Speclal Item No.3. The Ratification / approval of Related Party Transactions Since, the majority of the Company Directors were
interested in the related party transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2018 with the above mentioned
related parties due to their common directorship and shareholding in these associated undertakings, therefore, these transactions
have been placed before the members of the Company for their approval in the General Meeting. Such that all transactions with all
related parties are entered into on arms’ length basis. In order to ensure smooth business operations, the shareholders may




Information under Clause {b) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 of (Investment in Assoclated Companles or Assoclated
Undertakings) Companles Regulations, 2012.

LOANS
Name of Investee Company:; Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd Reliance Commaodities (Pvt) Ltd
Registration No and date: 0076592, Dated: 20.09.88 0091244, 28.01,96
Registered Office Address: E-110, Khyaban-e-Jinah 2nd Floor Trust Plaza

. Lahore LMQ Road Multan
Authorized Share Capital Rs. 2.2 (B) Rs. 100 {M)
Paid up Capital Rs. 2.102 (B) Rs. 80.08 (M)
Narne of Investee Company; Fatima Transmission Co. Ltd Fatima Energy Ltd
Registration No and date: 0051244, Dated: 26.12.14 00477_70, Dated: 22.06.04
Registered Office Address: E-110, Khyaban-e-Jinah E-110, Khyaban-e-Jinah

Lahore Lahare

Authorized Share Capital Rs. 250 {M} Rs. 5,700 (M)
Paid up Capital Rs. 230 (M) Rs. 8,000 (M)

Shareholders: Investee Companies are the associated companies of th

e Investing Company
as it, inter alia, has the following common directors:

Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd Reliance Commaodities {Pvt) Ltd
1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar 1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar
2. MIr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh 2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh

3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar
4. Mrs, Fatima Fazal

' 5. Mrs. Farah Falsal

6. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar

3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar

Fatima Energy Ltd

Fatima Transmission Company Ltd

1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar 1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar

2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh 2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh

3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar 1
4. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar

(ii) Amount of loans;

5.No. Name of the company Amount of Loan

1, Fatima Energy Ltd (FEL) 100 Million

2. Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd {FSML). 300 Million

3. Reliance Commodities (Pvt} Ltd (RCL), 100 Million

4, Fatima Transmission Company Ltd {FTCL) 100 Million

a) Loan for cater its financial needs as per requirement of investee Company and can be used for SBLC, guarantees, indemnity or any
other financial €ngagement as per requirement of investee Company.

. Any amount called under a guarantee, indemnity, or financial engagement shall also be considered a loan.

{iiiy Purpose of (oans or advances and benefits likely to accrue to the investing cam
Working capltal needs of the associated company

(iv) In case any loan has alread
thereof;

Except 15 million loan issued to FTCL and
to any other associated company.

pany and its members from such loans;

y been granted to the said associated company or associated undertaking, the complete details

RWML signed S$SA with the bankers of FEL such that no loan or advance has been granted




FSML RCL FEL FTCL
Particulars Rupees in million
Paid up capital 2,102 80 5700 230
Un-appropriated profit 1,169 1,430 (280) (8)
Current liabilities 5,592 4,052 7472 150
Current assets 5,738 5,416 1367 916
Sales 7,658 1,139 - -
Gross Profit 733 153 - -
Operating Profit 387 116 - -
Net Profit 100 116 {108) (13)
In Rupees
Breakup value per share 15.56 244 -
. Earnings per share 0.48 19.284 - -
Current Ratio 1.03 1.33:1 -

relevant period;
KIBOR +1,25%
(vii} Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission etc. to be charged;
KIBOR+2.5%

(viii) Sources of funds from where loans or advances will be given;

Retained earnings/own funds of the Company.

(ix} Where loans or advances are being granted using borrowed funds,-

NA

(a) Justification for granting loan or advance aut of barrowed funds;
NA

(b} Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining such funds, if any; and
NA

(c} Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing company;
{x} Particulars of collaterai security to be obtained against loan to
* N/A

(xi) If the loans carry conversion feature j.e.
formula, circumstances in which the conve
NA

(a) Conversion Formula:-
NA

{b} Circumstances in which conversion may take place:-
NA

(c) Time when the conversion may be exercisable:-
NA

(xii) Repayment schedule and terms of loans or advances to be given to the investee company;
i) Loan will be pay back by Investee Company with-in ane month Notice,

Loans will be called for one month notice
the borrowing tompany or undertaking, if any;

it is convertible into securities, this fact along with complete detait including conversion
rsion may take place and the time when the conversion may be exercisable;

to proposed investment;

= Nature Loan

s Purpose To earn mark- up on loan being provided to FSML, FTCL, FEL & RCL which will augrnent the Company's
cash flow

* Period Maximum period of three years on revolving basis

* Rate of Markup KIBOR+2.5% but above Financial cost of the Company

* Repayment Investee Company will pay Loan and mark-up to investing company on ane month notice

Note:- All the Loan Agreements signed between the Associated com

panies can be inspected on the meeting date

(xiv) Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated company or

associated undertaking or the transaction under consideration;
The Directors are sponsors of the investee Company.

{xv} Any other important details necessary for the members to understand the transaction; and
NA




» the following further information is required, namely,-
NA
(V) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts
Total Cash
Status of the decision regarding resciution already passed for the investment in associated companies and
Fatima Transmission Fatima HoldIng Ltd Fatima Energy Ltd
Detall Company Ltd
Total investment - 750 Million 7,523 million
300 million
approved
Company  signed Sponsors
Nil Epcrt agreement with the
Amount of 87.1 million Bankers of the FEL in case of
investment made to default by FEL, RWML wil) pay
date default amount.
As per approved terms & Company will create 3 charge| As per approved terms &
Reasons for not o e .
; conditions the pn the fixed assets of the| conditions the investment
having made . . . .
. Investment will be made cOmpany to DIB against the| will be made as per
complete investment . -, . , . .
50 far as per requirement of the facility provided tp Fatima| requirement of the investee
investee company Holding Ltd company
Rupees in milllon Rupees in million
Rupees in milllon
Material change in Equity 221 [Equity 15,851 [Equity 5,420
financial statements Noncurrent Liability 395 Noncurrent Liability 0 [Noncurrent Liability 15,450
of associated Current liability 190 KCurrent liability 4673 [Current liability 7,472
company Noncurrent assets 805 Noncurrent assets 0 [Noncurrent assets 26,984
Current assets 0.9 Kurrent assets 5703 [Current assets 1,367




Company Profile

Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd (RWML) is a public
limited Cormnpany listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange. It was incorporated on April 07, 1990
and Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) granted certificate of
Commencement of Business on May 14, 1990.

The Company is established with the ohjective of
setting-up a textile (Yarn & fabric) manufacturing
plant. Initially it started its production as. weaving
unit but later on it also involved in manufacturing
of yarn. The principal business of the Company is
manufacture and sale of different types of varn
and grey woven fabrics.

Authorized Capital of the Company is stood at
Rs.700 million which was gradually increased and
subscribed share capital of the Company stands at
Rs.308 million. The production capacity of the
Company is 80.81 million meter of Grey Cloth (50

PPI} & 21.01 million KGs of yam {20/S count per
annumy.

Qver the years, plants have demonstrated
operational excellence which has become a
reference for engineering and technical advisory
companies. Delegates from China and Japan keep
visiting the plant site for gaining firsthand
“knowledge about the quality of production.

The Company has developed a special
management tearm consisting of highly trained &
skilled personals in their fields. Speczial

management team is involved in monitoring plant
performance, development of new projects,
handling capital investment projects, advising
Mmanagement on technical matters and
development of a technological base along with
consultancy functions. Since 1990, special
management team has made tremendous
progress in the field of Plant Engineering, Project
Management, Project Feasibilities and Project
Cevelopment. The development of special
management team has recognized the need to

promote research and technological development
activities,

Nearly half of the members are located at the plant
1o provide assistance to the manufacturing units
and feeding vital plant data to the Head Office for
immediate processing. Special management
team is equipped with latest computing facilities
along with world renowned ORACLE Financiat
ERP system. This technology enables special
management team to provide most valuable
assistance to all the departments within the
Company. The success achieved so far proves
that the Company now possesses requisite in
house capabilities to ensure successful
completion of large scale projects within allocated
budgets and assigned project schedules.

This excellent performance is due to hard work
and dedication of all employees and the
progressive approach and support from the top



Management Profile

Board of Directars

Board of Directors of the Company has the ultimate responsibility of administration of affairs. The
Company's Board of Directors consist of eight members, six from sponsars and one independent and one
is nominated by NIT representation minorities shareholders' interest, Al the directors having equal rights to

participate in the matters ol the Company. Two members of the Board are executive, while six members of
the Board are non-executive.

The executive Directors are involved in the day to day opsrations of the Company. The current Direclors of
the Company are as follows:

Name Pasition Nature

Mr, Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar Chairman Non-Executive
Mr, Fazal Ahmed Sheikh Chief Executive Executive

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar Director Executive

Mr. Fahd Mukhtar Director Non-Executive
Mrs. Fatima Fazal Director Non-Executive
Mr. Dr. M, Shaukat Malik Director Independent
Mr. Shahid Aziz Director Independent

The Board of Directors meet regularly in every quarter, The Company complies with the code of corporate
governance issued by the Securities and Exchange Comimission of Pakistan ("SECP". Under its governance

structure, the Board of Directors has established a fully functional internal audit team directly reporting to
the Board of Directors.




Directors’ Profile

Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhrar

Chairman

Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar is the
Chairman of the Gompany and the
Chainman of Fatima Graup, The Group has
wilnessed immense growth under his
ieadership and investments hawve been
made in the fertilizer, sugar, energy and
mining sectors. The Group acquired
Pakarab Fertilizers, in 2005, through a
privatization process. In 2004 the Group
participated in an invesiment of US$750
millien for the establishment of a state of
the art fertilizer complex -Fatima Ferilizer.
He also halds the {ollowing porfaligs:

Chairman

Air One [Pw) Lid.

Fatima Energy Lid.

Falima Holding Led.

Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd
Fatima Electric Company Ltd

Fatima Tiading Campany (Pyt} Ltd.
Fatima Transmission Company Lid.

CED

Fatimalert Lid.

Pakarab Fertilizers Ltd.

Fatima Cement Company Ltd
Fatima Fertilizer Company Lid.
Reliance Cormmodities (Pvi) Lid.

Director
Fazal Cloth Mills Ltd.
Fatima Management Company Ltd.

Mir. Fazal Ahmed Shaikh
CEQ

Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh is the CED of the
Company. He holds a degree in Economics
from the University ot Michigan, Ann
Arbior, USA. He plays an impartant rale in
matters relaled to [mancial management,
marketing and information technalogy,
across the Group companies. He also
holds the lollowing porticiios:

CEQ

Fatima Energy Ltd.

Falima Elegtric Ltd

Fatima Transimission Company LLd.
Fatima Managemem Company Lrd.

Director

Fatimafert Ltd.

Air One [Pvl) Lid.

Fatima Halding Ltd.

Fazal Cloth Mills Ltd.

Fakarab Fertlizers Ltd.

Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd,

Fatima Trade Company Ltd
Fatima Fertilizer Company Lid.
Reliance Commodities {Pvi] Lid,
Fatima Trading Company (Pvt) Lid.

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar
Direclor

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar is a Directar of
the Company, He holds a Law degree from
Bahauddin Zakariva University, Multan. He
alse holds the fallawing partfolios:

CEQ

Fatima Halding Lrd

Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd
Fatima Trade Company Lta

Director

Fatimafert Lid

Air Cne (Pvl) Ld

Fatima energy Ltd

Fazal Cloth Mills Lud

Fakarab Fertlizers Ltd

Fatima Electric Company Lid
Fatima Fertilizer Company Lid
Reliance Commoditias {Pvt) Lid
Fatima Trading Company (Pt} Lid
Fatima Transmission Company Ltd.



Directors’ Profile

: Dr M Shaukat Ma_hk

: -Busmess Admmlstratmn frnm'I:.BzAf' o

: Karach| and presemiy ser\nng as professur

in \raﬂcus renowued Insmutmns He- 'has .
" been on Board of Syndicate: of BZUY for

three years, Ha is alse on Board of
Ditectors of Mullan Waste -Managament
Company, member ol Monitgring

_ Committee Mishlar Medical College and.
" . ‘Hospital Multan, member of ‘Senate, . <
Flnanca&PIannlng Cummnttee uf B2U;and _ _
- advisor to Punjab - PUblic Setvice S
Cornm|ssmn State Bankuf F‘aklstan He lS:_.
' : author nf mcre than 80. research papers '
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Profile of the
Executive Officers

Mr. Waheed Ahmed

Chief Financial Ofiger

Mr. Waheed Ahrmed is qualified Chartered Accountant having mare than 17 years' experience of haneling the

operational, Accounting, tax and Financial Matters of Listed companies. He is with Reliance Weaving Mills
Ltd since August, 2008,

Mr. Aftab Daiser

Comnpany Secretary

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Qaiser is a qualified Chartered Accounlant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England & Wales UK.; A Feliow Member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan & a Certified
Director of Corporate Governance from the Institute of Corporale Governance. Mr. Qaiser has over 37 years of

industrial experience in the fields of Financial Management, Internal Audit, Taxation and Legal & Corporate
Affairs of listed Companies. He joined the Company on March 2014.

Mr. Khawaja Sajid

General Manager Marketing

Mr. Khawaija Sajid is the General Manager of Marketing Department. He holds Master Degree in Business
Administration from Baha-Ud-zakriya University Multan and have 24 years of warking experience in Lhis

portlolio with the reputed Textile companies of Pakistan. He joined Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd in 2004 and
remains devoted till today.

Mr. Aqeel Saifi

General Manager Markeling

Mr. Agee! Saifi holds 2 Master’s degree in Business Administration [rom Imperial College of Business Studies
and B.Sc thons} Degree in Compuler Sciences from FAST — MUCES. He has been attached o the textile

industry for over 14 vears, working with well reputed textiles organizations of Pakistan.

He is with Reliance
¥Weaving Mills LLd. Since August, 2015,




Profile of the

Executive Officers

Mr. lkram Azeem

General Manager Weaving

Mr. lkram Azeem is holding B.Sc, Textile Engineering Degree from Nationa! College of Textile Engineering
Faisalabad (Speciafization in Weaving). He has vast experience of textile sector in renowned textile mills of
the country on different kind of weaving machines like Sulzer Toyoda and Tsudakema Air Jet Looms.

Mr. Mohammd Shoaih Aalam

General Manager (Spinning RMultan)

Mr. Muhammd Shoaib Aalam is having B.Sc. Textile {Spinning} Degree from University of Engineering and
Technology (UET) Lahore. He was Vice-President of Spinning Society. He is part of this group since the
erection of this Unit. He has experience of managing coarse and fine count mills, ranging from 6/1 to 120/1
on various type of machinery setups, and preducing different types of yarn from GIZA, PIMA and Brazilian
Cotton. He also got training for blow room and card from Reiter in Winterthur, Switzerland.

Mr. Hafeez ur Rehman

General Managor {Spinning Rawat)

Mr. Hafeez ur Rehman is BSc Textile Engineer from National Textile University {1995~1989) , Faisalabad
and serving as G.M. Spinning Unit No. 3 at Rawal, He has worked in Majar textile Groups of Pakistan

SAPPHIRE and CRESENT Group. He is specialist of rurning MELANGE , DYED , PC ,CVC, SIRQ. SLUB, LYCRA
and FANCY yarn.{Coarse and Fine Counts}

He has also experience of running cottons like PIMA, GIZA
Brazilian Cotton etc,



Chairman’s Review 2017-18

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the Board of Directors at 28"
General meeting of your tompany and to present annual review of the company’s Audited Fj
Statements along with Auditors Report thereon for the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

annual
nancial

For the year under review, your company recorded a net profit of Rs. 310 million as compared to Rs. 101
million last year & depicting EPS of Rs. 10.08 as against Rs. 3.29 in the previous financial year.

The Board is Confident that the Company will overcome the economic & other challenges and will
deliver sustainable results better than the last year,

Pursuant to section 159 of Companies Act 2017, the election of directors was held on March 31,2018 in

which seven directors were elected un-opposed. The Board of Director comprises of two Executives,

three Non-Executive and two Independent Directors pursuant to CCG-2017.

During the year Board Committees namely Audit, HR & Remuneration, and Rjsk Management continued

to work efficiently under their respective Terms of Reference (TOR) to the satisfaction of Board of
Directors,

Board carries out a review of its effectiveness & performance each year on self-assessment basis. The
Board has developed a Questionnaire in conformally with CCG-2017, circulated to each director to

evaluate the performance based on factors such as Board Composition, Leadership, Effectiveness of the
Board, and Strategy.

The Evaluation provides the board with an o

pportunity to review the balance skills, experience and
diversity & perspectives.

| look forward to welcoming as many as possible of shareholders at the farthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the company schedule to be held on October 29, 2018

Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar

Chairman
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DIRECTORS'REPORT TQ THE SHAREHOLDERS 2017-18

It gives me great pleasure to present my review of our company's performance for the year 2017-18.
L. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company earned after tax net profit of Rs. 308 million which shows improvement as compared to
Current Year Company turnover has increased from Rs 11,340 million to Rs 13,913 million, so increase
has improved from 938 million to 1,311 million which is 40 % increase as compared to last financial year,
3.29 to Rs 10.05. Power cost of the company has increased by Rs 230 million due to increase in prices
have also increased by Rs 83 million due to pile up of cotton stock and yarn at competitive prices. The
1o limely buying of these raw materials, The company has earned exchange gain amounting Rs 79 millio
The cotton crop in Pakistan during last season again missed the target due to which the industry was
requirement. The imposition of custom duty on import of cotton increased our input cost. Prices of yar|

. improved, Demand of yarn and fabric increased in export market, this can be atiributed to devaluation o
export rebate by the Govarnment,

profit of Rs 101 million in lasl financial yaar,
in tumnover is 22%. EBITDA of the company
EPS of the company has improved from Rs
of utilities during the year. Financial charges
company earned reasonably good profit due
n due to devaluation of PKR,

compelled to import the cotton to meets its
N and fabric in domestic and export market
f PKR against US dollar and continuation of

2. FUTURE QUTLOOK

As per USDA report cotton produgtion forecast is down based on lower area of cultivation, while consumption is up in most significant markets.
Trade is also expected higher in import dependent countries, Collon production in Pakistan during current season is alsc likely to remain below
than target. Both the US and China are Imposing tariffs on cotton. The impact of this move is going to have a wider macroeconomic impact on
the industry. China's domestic cotton demand is growing, and so are China's cotton imports. China has a production deficit of cotton. This deficit
had been filed by reserves in recent years, but the reserves being lower, that gap would be filled by imports. The tariff war wil have direct
implications on China's raw material costs, and hence its finished product costs. But it is evident that the prices will go upward, But what s rmore
challenging for the global players being in this scenario is the uncertainty in the cotton prices in the long term,

Cost fluctuations due to the trade war will affect the global textile industry substantially, Moreover, consumers around the globe shall face higher

textile costs because of this historical trade war, Globally Pakistan is competitive in all sectors. Textiles are lagging behind globally in competition

both in terms of quality and prices. No country can progress unless there is competitive edge globally. The Government is considering giving new
package to textile industry. The revival of textile industry is dependent on this package. The Government should releage long-outstanding sales lax
and other refunds immediately to manufacturers to resolve the liquidity problems,

We are facing challenges ahead due (o increase in costs struclure and continuous u

Company remains committed to business growth and exploring new opportunities to encounter the increasing cost through automation, backward

and forward integration. We are optimistic that these efforts wil yield long term positive results, The company has opened Letter of Credit for import
" of latest 48 high speed Air jet looms which shall increase the productivity and reduce cost.

3. OVER VIEW OF THE ECONOMY
The highlights are as under:

a.  The Country's Gross Domestic Product (G.D.P) recorded growth of 5.8%

b.  The Agriculturs Sector grew by 3.8%

€. Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) recorded a growth of 6,13%

d. Industrial Sector Growth improved by 5.8%

€. Manufacturing Sector grew by 6.24%

f. Service Sector witnessed a Growth of 6.43%

g.  Fiscal Deficit registared decline of 8.2% as compared to 5.82% of GDP in the Previous Fiscal Year

h. The Inflation CPI during July - March FY 2018 stood at 3.2% as against 4.0% in the comparable period of Last Year,
Sources:

* The highlights of
Miftah Ismail.

Pakistan Economic Survey 2017-18 issued by Finance Division, Government of Pakistan,

the Pakistan Economic Survey for the year 2017-18 unvejled by then Advisor to Prime Minister on Finance by Mr.

4. TEXTILE INDUSTRY BACK GROUND | PERFORMANCE
The highlights are as under:

The Textile Sector accounts for 8% of the GDP by centributing nearly 1/4% of Industrial Value added.

The textile industry is the second largest employment sector in Pakistan,

It provides 40% of the Industrial Labor Force.

Pakistan is the 81 largest exporter of textile commodities in Asia.

The export of textile products posted a growth of 12.8% as against last year.

Barring Seasonal & cyclical fluctuation textile products have maintained an average share of over 0% in national exports.
Cotton yarn, knitwear, bed wear and garments made ups are the most important exports products

Despite being the fourth largest producer of cotton globally, the Pakistan's comparable advantage is largely pre-empted by low value-
added exports

Being the most important manufacturing sector in the economy, it has the longest production chain with
addition at each stage of processing fro

STu o o0 o

inherent potential for value
m cotton to ginning spinning, fabric processing, made ups and garments.



Sources:

Cotton Production stood at 11,935 Million bales as compared to 10,617 Million bales (ast year,

Textile Export procaeds registered a growth of 8.7% during Financial Year 2018 owing to;
o Low base from previous year

o Sharp PKR depreciation
o Reimbursement under export support package

Allied Bank Limited, Economic Industry Research Department dated August 20, 2018,

The highlights of the Pakistan Economic Survey for the year 2017-18 unveiled by then Advisor to Prime Minister on Finance by Mr.
Miftah lsmail.

The Nation dated June 3, 2018

3. TEXTILES POLICY 2018-23

We welcome the proposals incorporated in draft Textile Policy 2018-

measures:

P o

Source;

Reduction in Gas & Energy rates

Extension of Textle Relief Packages without the condition of 10% ingrease in Exports
Ensuring rise of locally produced in-put to support allied industries

Reducing cost of doing business making exports competitive

Opening Export markets by Pursuing GSP (Generalized system of Preference) plus status with Eurcpean Union.

Research Team Aba Ali Habib Securities

6. CORPORATE AND FINANGIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors of the Company is fully cognizant of its responsibllities as laid down

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The following statements are a manifestati
practices of Code of Corporate Governance.

a.

in the code of corporate governance issued by the
on of its commitment towargd compliance with best

The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn
statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its st
changes in equity.

The Company has maintained Proper books of account as required by the Companies Act, 2017.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are
based on reascnable and prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been foll
any departures therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and menitored,
upon the Company's ability to continue as g going concern:

There has been no material departure from the best practice of corporate Gevernan
As required by Code of Corporate Governance; the statement of pattern of shareh
related persons have been given separately.

The information regarding outstanding taxes and levies as required by
statement,

The key operating and finangial statistics for the last six years has been given separately.

up in conformity Companies Act, 2017. The financial
ate of affairs the resuits of its operations cash flows &

owed in preparation of financial statements and

There are no significant doubts

ce, as detailed in Listing Regulations:
oiding, shares held by associated undertakings, and

Listing Regulation is disclosed in the Note te The financial

7. MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sr. No. Particulars Unit 30 June, 2018 30 June, 2017
A Gross profit % 9.67 8.68

B Return on sales % 2,22 0.89

C Earnings/(Loss) per share Rs. 10.01 329

D Market value of a share Rs. 30.49 45.60

E Balance shest footing Rs. 13,267 11,303

8. MARKET CAPITALIZATION

At the close of the year, the market capitalization of the Company stood at Rs. 939 million

as against Rs. 1404 million as at June 30, 2017,



9. MODERNIZATION & EXPANSION
Company is committed to modemize and expand production line accordin

g to rapidly changing technology in order to produce international quality
products, The company has established letter of credit for 4

8 high speeds Air Jet fo diversify its product market mix

10.  OUTSTANDING TAXES AND DUTIES
- Details of outstanding taxes and duties are given in the financial statements,

11.  CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

Your Company contributes substantially to the national economy in terms of taxes and duties and the contribution is increasing as the Company is

growing. This year the Company contributed in the National Exchequer in the form of Federal Excise Duty, Sales Tax, Custom Duties, Income Tax,
etc.

12. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR}

Your Company considers CSR as a fundamental sustainable business practice to contribute voluntarily towards better society. Reliance Weaving
Mills Ltd (RWML) strives to be a good corporate citizen. We have always shown strong commitment and support for public health and promotion of
education that's why your Company is a permanent doner of reputable charity organizations including Mukhtar A, Sheikh Trust, Which contributes

towards the well-being of deprived people by setting-up Hospitals, Medical camps etc. The free medical camps are set up in far flung areas of the
Country where healthcare is very hard (o access. Palients avail free medical check-up along with medicines,

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Your Company's post-tax profit of Rs. 308 million translates into EPS of Rs. 10.05 as compared to Rs. 3.29 last year.

14, DIVIDEND
The Board of directors has recommended dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018 at Rs2.25 per share,

1J5. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to section 159 of Companies Act 2017, the election of Directors was held on March 31, 2018 & the following Directors were elected un-

apposed,

1. Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh Executive Director

3. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar Exscutive Director

4. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar Non-Execulive Director
5. Mrs. Fatima Fazal Non-Executive Director
6.  Dr. Shaukat Malik Independent Director
7. Mr, Shahid Aziz Independent Director

16. COMPOSITION GF BOARD DRECTORS
The Board of Directors comprises of eminent individuals with divers
Directors including a female Director Mrs. Fatima Fazal.

. There are two Executive Directors including the Chief Executive
Independent Directors pursuant to CCG 2017,

& experiences & expertise and is visionary persons. It comprises of seven

Officer & three Non-Executive Directors including the Chalrman and two

Meetings of Board of Directors

Sr. No. Name of participants Designation Aftendance
i Dr. Muhammad Shaukat Member 57
2 Mr. Shanid Aziz Member 77
3 Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar Chairman 417
4 Mr. Fahd Mukhtar Member 417
5 Mrs. Falima Faza| Member 6/7
6 Mr. Fazal Abmed Sheikh Member 6/7
7 Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar Member Kl
8 Mrs. Farah Faisal * Member 4/4

Nole: Mrs. Farah Faisal has not contested in election of direclors held in March 2018

7. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

" Pursuant to CCG-2017, the Audit Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors; the Chairperson being an Independent Non-Executive

Director Dr. Shaukat Malik holds doctorate degree in Business Administration and Mr. Shahid Aziz has experience over 30 years in Financial
Matters.



The composition of Audit Committes is as under;

1. Mr. Shahid Aziz Independent Non-Executive Director Chairperson
2. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar Non-Executive Diractor Member
3. Dr. Shaukat Malik Independent Non-Executive Director Member

The Board of directors has determined the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
Audit Committee to carry out its responsibllities effectively.
The Commiliee assists the Board of Directors to fulfill its Cor
internal control system.

provides adequate resources and authority to evaluate the

porate & Risk Management responsibilities including the entity's financial reporting and

Meetings of Board Audit Committes

Sr. No. Name of participants Designation Attendance
49 Mr. Shahid Aziz (Chairman} 44

2 Mr. Fahd Mukhtar (Member) 34

3 Dr. M. Shaukat Malik {Member) 4/4

18. COMPOSITION OF HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Two members of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee are Non-Executive Dir

ectors pursuit to CCG-2017 Dr. Shaukat Malik; the
Independent Director is the chairperson of the committee.

The Composition of the Committee

1. Dr. Shaukat Malk Independent Non-Executive Director Chairperson
2. Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar Executive Director Member
3 Mr. Fahd Mukhtar Non-Executive Director Member

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee focuses on risks in its area of human resources, including assessment of Compensation
Structure & amount fo ensure availability of talented furctionaries In each area of critical company operation.

The Beard of Directors has determined the term of reference of Human Resource & Remuneration Committee, which includes recommendation on
Human Resource Management, Organizational development, training and Management succession.

*Mesting Of HR & Remuneration Committes

Sr. Ne. Name of participants Designation Aftendance
1 Dr. M. Shaukat Malik {Chairman) il
2 Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar {Member) 11
3 Mr. Fahd Mukhtar {(Member) 11

19.  CONSTITUTION OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pursuani to CCG-2017 the Board of Directors has constituted the Risk Management Committee to identify, evaluate, prioritize, and manage,
competition, Business, tachnology, obsolescence, retention of talent, financial, markeling, political & legal risks with a mitigation ptan in a proactive
and effective manner, '

It comprises of one Executive Director & two Non-Executive Independent Directors.

The Compaosition of the Committee

a.  Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar Executive Director Chairperson
b. Dr. Shaukat Malik Independent Non-Executive Direcior Member
c.  Mr. Shahid Aziz Independent Non-Executive Director Member

. The board will oversee the Risk Management process primarily lhrough Internal Audit Department which will monitor the Company's risk
management quarterly or more frequently as and when required.

Meeting of Risk Management Committee

Sr. No. Name of participants Designation Attendance
1 Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar (Chairman}) 1A

2 Mr. Shahid Aziz {Member) 11

3 Dr. M. Shaukat Malik (Member) 11

20.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND PARTICULARS OF
EMPLOYEES

The remuneration paid to the Directors and Executives are in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017, The Executive Directors including CEO of your Company do not receive remuneration from the



Company. The information required under Companies Acl, 2017 in respect of Directors and executive employees of your Company is annexed
in this report and is alsc available on the website of your Company (www.fatima-group.com)

21.  STATEMENT OF ETHICS & BUSINESS PRACTICES

The Statement of Business Ethics and Cere Values provide the framework on which the Company conduts its business. The Board of Directors and
the employees of the Company are the custodians of the excellent reputation for conducting our business according to the highest principles of
business ethics. The following principles constitute the business ethics & the core values of the Company.

*  Demonstrate Honesly integrity, faimess and ethical behavior when interacting within or outside the organization.

Compliance with all Laws & Regulations as a good corporate citizen,

Commitment to run the business in an environment that is sound & sustainable,
Belief in the principles of reliability, credibilily and Iransparency in business transactions.
To be an equal opportunity employer
Safeguard shareholders interest.
Ensure Health & Safety environment to protect our people, neighbors, customers & visitors.
Encourage the business challenges.
investment in Human Capital.
Proper Financial disclosure of the canflicl of interest transactions if any.
Accountability & responsibility.
Good & effective public relations,
Promotion of culture of excellence by exceeding the expectations of all stakeholders.
Customer satisfaction for continued growth
Encourage employees to be creative & innovative
Respact for all stakeholders

Relizble & dependable supplier, enhancement of profilability to benefit shareholders, employees and the Gevernment

22. INTERNAL CONTROL

Your Company has adequate internal confrol procedures commensurate with the size of opefations and the nature of the business. These
controls ensure efficient use and protection of Company's financial and non-financial resources. Regular intemal audit and checks ensure that

responsibiliies are executed effectively, The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
control systems and suggests improvement for strengthening them, from time to time.

23.  INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
Internal Audit function is effectively operating within the
Committee of the Board of Directors. The Internal Audit fi
through proactive approach towards effective corporate
synergies at the group level. The board relies on the in
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in fhe

framework set out in Code of Corporate Governance and the charter defired by the Audit

unction is progressing from a conventional function into a business partner and advisory role

governance {hrough risk mitigation, adding value within the business process and creating

puts and recommendations of the internal audit function through its Audit committes on the

organization and takes appropriate measures. The function is effectively utilizing risk control

+ malrix, to prioritize and develop its annuat plan and to strengthen the internal controls through periodic reviews of all the functions/ processes in the
organization. The final reports with recommendations

are submitted to Audit Committee of the Board and the implementation is ensured through
vigorous follow-ups while regulatory and financial reporting compliance is ensured through independent reviews and coordination by Extarnal
Auditors.

24. CODE OF CONDUCT

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines, the Com
from placing it on the Company's website.

235. HEALTH SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

RWML Is a responsible environment-protecting corporate

pany has prepared a Code of Conduct and communicated throughout the Company apart

Citizen and is aware of ils dual responsibility to the environment and to the nation's
progress. HSE performance of all segments of RWML remained excellent during the year under review. Strong commitment of Plant Team to HSE
has enabled it to achieve all standard of HSE, Leading indicators and Management Safety Audit (MSA) criteria were updated in line with site
requirement and new revamped *Permit to work” system implemented successfully. Comprehensive monitering and self-auditing regimes remained
in focus backed by internal and external audits. Management Safety Audits, Emergency Response, Plant Reliability Enhancement Program,
Occupational Health & Industrial Hygiene and Customized Housekeeping Audits are few to be named.

26G. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

. Information Technology Division continues to be a ke
communication services, facilities and infrastructure fo
that the solutions defivered are relevant to the needs
and dashboards capability and as a strategy will fo
customers by deploying latest technology.,

¥ component in how we support RWML and provides an extensive range of computing and
r use by its employees. The IT is aligned to the business needs of the organization, ensuring
of the business. Our Vision involves strengthening decision making, using improved analytics
cus on other slate of the art applications, reduce paper footprint and increase its reach to

27. TRADING IN SHARES BY DIREGTORS AND EXECUTIVES

During the year 2017-18 Nine hundred fifty five Shares (955) of the company were purchased by the following Directors



a.  Prof Dr. Shaukat Malik 850 Shares
b.  Mr. Shahid Aziz (05 Shares

28. WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Policy is intended to only those individuals who believe that they have discovered malpractice or behavior/practice conflicting with the principle
of code of conduct which is fundamental to the professional integrity of the company.

- Itis not designed to question financial or business decision taken by the management of the company. The scope of whistle blowing policy is as
under:

Non-compliance to laws

Fraud corruption or theft

Nepotism

Danger to public or employee’s health and safety
In-justice

Deliberate falsification of information
Harassment at workplace

Discrimination on any ground

Unethical conduct/ behavior

o mpao g

The fundamental elements of whistle-blowing policy are as under;

All staff is prolected from viclimization, harassment or disciplinary action as a result of any disclosure made in good faith.
Disclosure to be in writing

a.

b.

. Anonymous disclosure will not be entertained.

d. Fullinvestigation of disclosure will be made

e. Al disclosure to be treated confidentially

f.  Disciplinary action will be taken against wrong doers.

9. No adverse Consequences to individual reporting in good faith

h.  Malicious allegation reperted by individuals will have adverse consequences

29. HSEATRWML

Our HSE policy is an important ingredient of our overall code of business conduct. If states that RWML will ensure:
. The health of its employees, contractors, customers and public is protected.
All activities are carried out safely,

b
c. Environmentis protected.

d.  Comply with Pakistan's relevant laws and regulations.
)

Ensure that all its activities are carried out in accordance with the Company's Health, Safety and Environmental Standards and
Procedures.

Ensure that environmental performance meets legislative requirements.

Require every employee to exercise personal responsibility in preventing harm to self or others and to the environment,

Maintain public confidence in the integrity of its operations by openly reperling its performance to all stakeholders who work with the
Company,

Provide appropriate Health, Safety and Environment training/information to employees, contractors and other stakeholders who work with
the Company.

Integrate Risk Assessment with all business processes.

Promote prevention of pollution and proper handling and disposal of wastes.

. Continuously improve our performance by improving the leadership, capability and capacity of our organization.

=~

30. BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANNING AND SAFETY PROCEDURES FOR DATA PROTECTION

RWML has a comprehensive disaster recovery plan in place which entails backup facilities at different areas. This system is also subject to
regular system checks to ensure continued effectiveness and uptime in case of any emergency. Detailed Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs} and ready reference checklists has also been developed where situations/areas of high risk that could hamper Company operations
have been identified and explored in detail. Accordingly, action plans have been prepared to manage strategic business risks of the Company

considering the general economic conditions, competitive realifies and possible scenarios and ensuring that risk management process and
culture are embedded throughout the Company.

31. INVESTOR GRIEVANCE POLICY

RWML continuously engages with its investors through Company's secretariat and responds to their queries and request for information and
their concerns / grievances, RWML's registrar also timely addresses investor's grigvances.

. $2. WEBSITE
The Company's web site www.fatima-group.com offers a detalled overview and information of the following aspects of your Company:



a. Business lines, its operational aspects and current activities
b. Management team
C. Corporate Information
d. Procurement activities
€. Periodical financial results and other finangial information
f. Human Resource recruitment
g. Media engagement
It is also

highlighted here that the RWML's website fulfils the mandatory requirements as laid down by the SECP for all listed companies,

33.  AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

M/S ShineWing Hameed Chaudhry & Co. Chartered Accountant has com
un-qualified audit report. The Auditors will retire on the conclusion of the u

" offered them for reappointment for the year ending June 30, 2019.

The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of M/S ShineWing Hameed Chaudhry & Co. Chartered Accountant as external audilors
of the company for the forthcoming financial year at a fee mutually agreed upon.

pleted the Annual Audit for the year June ended 30, 2018 and has issued
pcoming Annual General Mesting of the Company and being eligible have

34. SHAREHOLDING

Total number of the shareholders as at June 30, 2018 stood at 1665 as against 1638 last year. A statement showing pattern of shareholding of the
Company and additional information as at June 30, 2018 is annexed with report.

33F.  PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattem of shareholding and categories of shareholders as at

June 30, 2018, as required under the Companies Act 2017 and Pakistan
Stock Exchange Regulations, have been annexed in this repott,

36.  BRIEF ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHAIRMAN & CEO

Pursuant to CCG 2017 (including any other statutory rules or re-enactment(s} for the time being in force), the Directors of your Company confirm
that:

2. The Chairman manages the Board business and acts as its facilitator & guide with a primary role to ensure that the Board is effective in its
tasks of setting & implementing the Company's direclion & strategy.

b.  The Chairman represents the Non

¢ The Chairman acts as the Head
Board meetings.

d. The CEO/managing director being the highest-rankin
company by making top level managerial decisions.

e.  The other litle of The CEQ is The Managing Director.

-Executive Directors of the Board and is entrusted with the leadership of the Board proceedings.
of Board meetings and has the power to set the agenda and gives direction and sign the minutes of the

g individual in the company carries the responsibility for overall success of the

37.  OFFICES OF CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

In compliance with good governance practices, the position of Chairman of the Board of Direclors and lhe office of the Chief Execulive Officer are
held by separate persons with clear of duties & responsibiliies demarcations.

38.  DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM

Ali the Directors except one is either sxempt from Director Training Program for serving more than 15 years as a Board Member of a listed Company
or have been appropriately certified under the Director's Training Program from SECP approved institutions. The remaining one director wifl get
cerlification under the Director's Training Program from SECP approved institute within the time limit mandated by CCG-2017.

39.  RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has in place an enterprise—wide risk management system which takes care of risk idenlification, assessment and mitigation,

Compliance management has been significantly strengthened by the deployment of an integrated compliance management and govemance
framework,

Your Company has also constituted a Risk Management Committee to oversee the risk management efforts in your Company. Risk Managemenl

Committee reviews the process of risk management in your Company. The management periodically briefs the Committee on the emerging risks

along with the risk miligation plans put in place. Risk management is interlinked with the annual planning exercise where each function and business
carries out fresh risk identification, assessment and draws up treatment plans.

40.  DETAILS ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Your Company has putin place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, some of which are outlined below.
8. Your Company has adopted accounling policies which are in line with the Accounting Standards prescribed in IAS that continued to
apply and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2017 1o the extent applicable. These are in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles in Pakistan. Changes in policies, if any, are approved by the Audit Committee in consultation
with the Statuiory Auditors.

b.  The policies to ensure uniform accounting treatment are prescribed to the associated companies or subsidiaries if any,



C.  Your Company operates in Oracle EBS R-12 an ERP
backed up periodically. The ERP system is confi
books of account. Your Company has automate
underlying ERP system.

d.  Your Company has a robust financial closure selfcertification mechanism wherein the fine managers certify adherence to various
accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of provisions and other eslimates.
€. Your Company in preparing its financial statements makes Judgments and estimates based on sound policies and usss external

agencies lo verify/ validate them as and when appropriate. The basis of such judgments and eslimates are also approved by the
Statutory Auditors and Audit Committee,

f. The Management periodically reviews the financial performance of your Company against the approved plans across various
parameters and takes necessary action, wherever necessary.

g.  Your Company has a code of conduct applicable to all its employees along with 2 Whistle Blowing Policy to report malpractices if any.

system and has many of its accounting records stored in an electronic form and
gured to ensure that all transactions are integrated seamlessly with the underlying
d processes fo ensure accurate and timely updates of various master data in the

41.  CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE 2017

We welcome the enactment of CCG-2017 repealing the CCG-2012 with effect from December 31, 2017, being aligned with Companies Act 2017 &
placing Pakistan Stock Exchange PSX under SECP-Islamabad thereby increasing lhe confidence of investors.

The regulation will also strengthen governance structures, bring consistency in the corporate practices and promote transparency through enhanced
disclosure requirements. Furthermore, the role and responsibiities of directors have been made clear and enhanced, independent decision-making
is encouraged, gender diversity is stpported and mechanism for fransparency and accountability is strengthened.

" 42.  INTERNAL BANKING ACCOUNT NO, (IBAN)

Pursuant to circular No.18 dated August 01, 2017 the shareholders are requested to intimate IBAN so (hat the cash dividend is paid electronically to
the shareholders.

43.  NEW COMPANIES ACT 2017

We welcome the enactment of Companies Act 2017 for which SECP deserves appreciation for repealing the companies Ordinance, 1984 in
consultation with various stake-holders to facllitate corporat

e sector by strenglhen the regulatory framework, maximum use of technology, elimination
of un-necessary requirements and protection of interest of the shareholders,

44. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors of your Company would like to take this opportunity to thank the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), banks and
financial institutions and insurance companies for their continued support and cooperation, The Directors would also like to express their gratitude
and appreciation for the support provided by our valued customers and suppliers. We also thank our shareholders, who continue to place their trusi
and conlidence in the Company and assure them our best efforts o ensure optimum utilization of their investment in the Company. Finally, the

Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the devotion, loyalty and hard work of all cadres of employees toward the growth
wellbeing and success of the Company.

For and on behalf of the board

Fazai Ahmed Sheikh Dr. Shaukat Malik

Place: Lahore
Dated; Cetober 04, 2018
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. SIX YEARS GROWTH AT A GLANCE (2013-201H0)

FROFIT AND LDSS:

[ 2018 T 7 [ 2018 2005 [ 7014 | FLIER|
hul Salne Ra. M 13,914 11362 10,048 10878 11,412 52544
Grea Prof Fix M 1,348 984 826 ez 1421 1247
Poofilf iLogs) befora Tax RE. M 463 168 a7 {142) 250 da
Prafh fLoss) atar Tax Fég. M 211 141 - TR T 370

ASSETS AND LIABLITIED

(Cioe ] 2617 [ zo18 [ mis ] a3
Tolal Equy Fa M 1,402 2856 2774 2743 2805 2004
Mon Curran Liski s Ris. M 1482 1948 2102 2272 1808 1,120
Cropeny Flant ad -cquipment He M 537 5376 ST 5380 4598 3m4
Cutien Azgors As.M 5705 4997 4202 3882 4720 4209
Curren Linkiil e ks M 8.8 6455 5380 5a21 4988 4.dss

L2,000°
1030,

R;'.'M.il.litin N

Caos L Y.

T T taf ejuity. - Nt Cirrém Lt . '1;-m¢nymn}nguﬁ¢m‘w:m; S

CFERATIONAL PERFORMANCE;

Wezying

2018 2017 [ 2096 [ 7019 | 2014 | 2013 ]
Numger of Laoms Instalsd Numoer 348 ME N6 3% 136 96
d Cloth Praduction; S9pp)

Murs 06 B4.464 BO.813 78197 7RID7 7450 70,520
Aciugl Clolk PraguclioniE0pg) Mura DO B2 214 72801 BRI FASIE  TIS18  &1.621

Fabric Prodirction

WO

e .
W90, Ltk Production(S0api) - Apwual Ctoth Productionfsopy. - -

Spinnihg . L e -
[(z015] 2007 73076 | 2018 [ 2014 2013 ]
Hurmber of Sgindes Inclallad Numoer 1,820 61820 61,920 61520 48,720 35520
Insiailad Capacily (g 20 &) Kas 800 20,455 2105 18722 168,618 15930 14,563
Atlual Farn Producben (6170 5y Kgs 00T 18,265 18602 16295 15122 11,258 8,504
S . -.-Yarn Production -
. 000 . . - Lo
Canoo
HEES
& w00
1000 )
T o T mans T g 13
Teinstolied Capaxity (@ 265) = Actiol Yam Producion (20 5) -




SoLE3 BREAKLP

& [ aou ] 300 |
fper Saw Re W 6584 a57a 4 ar )
Lazal Anln Hz n 7.000 GhHA4 B 11D 4,033 LEL] )
Whanaale Lo -l i | ~ 4l LTal~1 EET

. . Sales Analysis - DR . L
o ST L

INVERTOR INFORMATION ;

[ 2 [ aim weis | aew [ o
fhock Valus par ahyn o 92M S0z 6Ees 7108 EAem
Wnikal Vabon par Shown o 5B WE 125 3887 sa
E¥tirg Der Sharn I 23 c1 @ 7131 maras

=Rk Valus parshore -

_Morkal atie gur Share

a7 2o | puis [ dota [ awii .
Cush Divineme [} 15% 5% oE e E)
Epach Ty dend k) oy, % s, [LY [0
- Dividend - . .. -
g il L R : .
EINANCIAL HAT|04;

[IFYITH I I T # ] avu [ e
fiman Frofl Ame: u, 267 BEB  AR]  TTa  #83  fem
Mt PicflL Asna % 23 L] 0Dl (D9l vez B.0&
Curinitt Atk can 27T 0 DIE 0aE bbE
Ak TeiZukk) Ralka S o 0.3 o4l 0,38 037
Irtarast Covar Rtk Timax 17 [FEE- m Lae 230
Irveareoey fuirer Timan 402 187 467 h3] ax LAl
v Assat lutrar “irnar 753 IS 18 wsd gy 106
Toeal Azaal brnovar Timas [ 196 298 pm @ 1,24

15.00
& non
i
o 1
i ' .
En .
& .
15,00 -

i MR .

e LU - i

teegnlon sy

Flvad Aptel turtiowr |

ﬂ. " . Total Asse rurmourr

.'IK.DJB

Imwanary terpgvar  Fined Ave) lnoeee 8 Solel Ao turnauar




13,514
112,56
[NETY)
{10
[}
(37
(54
2.41% (622

fituher ans marketing esp.
Admirustralion ¢z
Llhed orearaling wep

Lies urinvestrcrl n assocEie
Cliher inzomy

0 0%, 131
A IS

T T—— —— " 2 L

L Ditribution of Turnover o1l D

. Coot of saies -

m bls‘tn‘buf:ior; I'léld .}nérk-glmg Elp\.
" Adminlstiorion axp. |

Otheroperaling exp. .

A iasson fpvestmam n gssocione.

- o Otherincome

L erofit/fsss apei v




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding
a5 at June 30, 2018
S.No. Name of sharehalder Number of shares Per %
Bl and thelr spous mino| ren
1 FAZAL AHMED SHEIKH 7,911,722 25.68
2 FAZAL AHMED SHEIKH 14,000 0.0s
3 FAWAD AHMED MUKHTAR 7,854,550 25.43
4 FAISAL AHMED MUKHTAR 7,886,071 25.60
5 FARAH FAISAL 112,500 0.37
& FATIMA FAZAL 140,625 0.46
7 FAHD MUKHTAR 25,000 0.08
B MUHAMMAD SHAUKAT 3,455 0.01
9 AMBREEN FAWAD 115,625 0.38
10 SHAHID AZIZ 5 0.00
10 24,083,553 78.10
leted compgnles, uh ngs an d |
1 RELIANCE COMMODITIES {PVT} LTD 3 0.00
2 FATIMA HOLDING LIMITED 845,705 2.74
2 B45,708 2.74
Executive
NIL -
P ctor les an:
1 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE ag4 0.00
2 INVESTMENT COAP. QF PAKISTAN 1,460 o.co
El NATIONAL BAMK OF PAKISTAN 276 0.00
4 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 333 0.00
q 3,053 0.01
Ban evelopment finance institutions, nap-hanking e com Insuran mpan katul, modarabas an
benslgn fungs
1 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUNE 54,182 0.18
1 54,182 0.18
Mu d
1 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT {UNIT) TRUST 592,645 1.93
1 552,645 1.92
Forelgn skor
NIL -
thers
1 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 1,901 0.01
2 M/S PYRAMID INVESTMENT{PVTILTD 3,900 0.01
3 KARACH|,LAHORE STOCK EXCHANGES 2 0.00
4 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 400 0.00
3 ¥.5, SECURITIES & SERVICES (PYT) LTD. 555 0,00
6 FAZAL HOLDINGS [PYT.) LIMITED 24,250 0.08B
7 S.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES [PYT} LIMITED 150 0.00
B PYRAMID INVESTMENTS (PVT) LTO, 2,850 0.01
El MUHAMMAD AHMAD NADEEM SECURITIES [SMC-PYT.] LUMITED 13,000 0.04
10 SI0DIQ LEATHER WORKS (PYT)LTD 120,500 0.39
11 SEVEN STAR SECURITIES {PYT.) LTD. 45,500 0.15
12 FIKREES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1,500 0.00
13 INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 5,000 0.02
14 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 2,000 0.01
15 FORTUME SECURITIES LIMITED 40,000 0.13
16 FANCY PETROLEUM SERVICES {PVT.] LMITED 3,500 0.01
17 SHAFFI SECURITIES [PYT) LIWITED 2,000 0.01
1B BAWA SECURITIES {PVvT) LTD, 2,175 0.01
19 AZTE SECURITIES [FRIWATE} LIMITED 500 0.00
20 SHERMAN SECURITIES {PRIVATE) LIMITED 35,000 0.11
21 PEARL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 1,000 0.00
22 ARIF HABIB LIMITEC - MF 8,000 0.03
23 BAWS SECURITIES (PYTILTD. - MF 1,000 Q.00
24 N. U. A. SECURITIES |PRIVATE] LIMITED - MF 44,000 Q.14
— = éﬂl 358,683 1.16
ggngral Pugils 1623 4,893,113 15.88
Total ) 1,665 30,910,937 100
Share holder! Shares Held Shares Percenlage
1 FAZAL AHMED SHEIKH 7,925,722 25.72
2 FAWAD AHWMED MUKHTAR 7,854,550 25.49
3 FAISAL AHMED MUKHTAR 7,886,071 25.60
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RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding As of June 30

2018

1 100 -
670 101 to 500 157,362
459 501 to 1000 439,447
200 1001 to 5000 503,311
37 5001 to 10000 295,987
19 10001 to 15000 249,490
12 15001 to 20000 235,186
4 20001 to 25000 95,450
4 25001 to 30000 105,010
1 30001 to 35000 35,000
3 35001 to 40000 116,500
2 40001 10 45000 85,000
5 45001 to S0000 243,000
3 50001 to 55000 161,682
2 60001 to 65000 124,000
1 65001 1o 70000 67,500
1 85001 fo 90000 86,000
1 90001 to 95000 90,310
3 95001 to 100000 296,983
1 100001 to 105000 103,891
2 110001 to 115000 225,125
2 115001 to 120000 234,157
1 120001 to 125000 120,500
1 135001 to 140000 137,500
1 140001 to 145000 140,625
1 150001 to 155000 153,393
1 155001 to 160000 156,000
1 150001 to 195000 192,000
1 195001 to 200000 200,000
1 225001 to 230000 225,950
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 550001 to 595000 592,645
1 845001 to 850000 845,705
1 7850001 to 7855000 7,854,550
1 7885001 to 7890000 7,886,071
1 7910001 to 7915000 7,911,722
1665 Total 30,810,937
::ir:::c:::“::::helr spouse(s) and 10 24,063,553 78.10
Associated Com;l:ames, undertakings 5 845,708 274
and related parties
Executives - - -
Publlc Sector Companles and a4 3,053 0.01
Corporations
Banks, development finance Institutions,
:':::r:::tl::::::‘;::::;::l:lf:;o“ra bas 1 54‘ 182 0.18
and pension funds
Mutual Funds 1 592,645 1.92
Others 24 358,683 1.16
General Public
a. Local 1,623 4,853,113 15.88
b. Forelgn Investor - - -
G.Total 1,665 30,810,937 100




Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017,

Name of company Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd
Year ended June 30, 2018,

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors - Dr. Muhammad Shaukat

- Mr. Shahid Aziz

- Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar
. Mr. Fahd Mukhtar

- Mrs. Fatima Fazal

- Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh

- Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar

b) Other Non-executive Director

¢) Executive Directors

NO U R W N

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five

listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding
companies where applicable),

4. The company has pre

procedures,

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exerci

been taken by board/shareholders as eémpowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.
7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,

director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirem
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
meeting of board.

8. The board of directors has 3 formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations,

9. No Directors’ Training program has been arranged during the year 2017-18 because two

directors have already got such training in previous years and further four are exempt from the
DTP and one Director wil got DTP in the next year ending.

by a
ents
recording and circulating minutes of



10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Shahid Aziz (Chairman)
Mr. Fahd Mukhtar {(Member)
Dr. M. shaukat Malik {Member)
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Qaiser {Secretary)
b} HR and Remuneration Committee
Dr. M, Shaukat Malik (Chairman)
Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar {(Member)
Mr. Fahd Mukhtar {Member)
Mr. Asad Jan (Secretary)

¢l Risk Management Committee
Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar {Chairman)

Mr. Shahid Aziz (Member)
Dr. M. Shaukat Malik {Member)
Mr. Basharat Hashmij (Secretary)

13, The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings {quarterly/half yearly/ yearly} of the committees were as per
following:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Shahid Aziz (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Fahd Mukhtar {(Member) 3/4
Dr. M. Shaukat Malik (Member) 4/4
b} HR and Remuneration Committee

Dr. M. Shaukat Malik (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar {Member) 11
Mr. Fahd Mukhtar (Member) 1/1
¢) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar {Chairman}) 1/1
Mr. Shahid Aziz (Member) 1/1
Dr. M. Shaukat Malik {Member} 1/1

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function under the leadership of Head of

internal Audit who is qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the company,



as adopted by the ICAP

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act

guidelines in this regard.
18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with,

Fazal Ahmed Sheikh

Place: Lahore
Chief Executive

Dated:October 04, 2018
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Tal: 492 42 37235084-87
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax: +32 47 37235083

Emall: tir@hecpieom
www.hcopk.com
Other Offices:
Karachl & Multan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANGE CONTAINED IN THE LISTED COMPANIES ( CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE } REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended
June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflecls the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is

limited primarity to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and Internal contral systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effeclive
audit approach. We are not required to consider whelher the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to ferm an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendaticn of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, ifs related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, We have nat carried-out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Complianca does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all

material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & €O.,
LAHORE; .SN\*‘:L CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Praxity.;

a member firm of ShineZ0in¢ International GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF
4 IND

EPENDENT FIRMS



Tel: +92 42 37235084-67
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax: +92 42 37235083
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Other Qfﬁces:
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT Karachi & Multan

TO THE MEMBERS OF RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

I ShineZin ; SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. {55, o

PAKISTAN

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the staterment of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and the statement of
profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of

purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our

S.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. [Compliance with laws and regulations

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) was|We performed following audit procedures:
promulgated on May 30, 2017, which
replaced the Companies Ordinance, 1984|- Obtained an understanding of the related provisions
and brought changes in the presentation| and schedules of the Act, applicable to the Company
and disclosures of the financial statements| and prepared documents to asses
by elimination of duplicative disclosures with compiiance with the disclosu
IFRS  disclosure requirements  and| Act

mcorporation  of significant  additional
disclosures. These changes are applicable
first time to the Company's financial
statements for the year ended June 30,
2018,

s the Company's
re requirements of the

Discussed the appiicable changes with the
Company's management and those charged with
governance as to whether the Company was in
compliance with such changes.

Praxity :

a member firm of Sﬁzneﬂ)m:; International

Wit
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S.No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The changes are considered as a key audit
matter as faifure to comply with the
requirements of the Act could have financial
impact on the Company.

Refer notes 2, 6, 7.2, 7.4,13.1, 22,391, 45
48, 47 and 49 for changes in disclosures
made through the Act.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company's property, plant and
equipment represent 86% (2017: B5%) of
its total non-current assets; further, these
represent 42% (2017: 48%) of its total
assets at the reporting date. Judgement is
exercised in determining the following:

- useful lives and residual values;

- @ssessing whether there are any
indicators of impairment present;

- when performing impairment
assessments where indicators have been
identified: and

Based on value of the balance, at the
reporting date as well as the judgement
involved in determining useful lives and
residual values, this has been identifiad as
a key audit matter.

Maintained a high level of vigilance when carrying-out
our other audit procedures for identification of any non
compliance.

Ensured that the financial statements have bszen

prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards and the Act. '

The following was performed on the assessment of
useful fives and residual values:

- obtained the useful lives and residual values
assessment and confirmed that thig was reviewed
and considered in the year under review;

- followed up on changes made to useful lives and
corroborated by inspection of assets and discussion
with operational personnel that the amendment was
appropriate; and

confirmed by inspection of the fixed assets register
and discussion with operational management that

there were no material assets still in use with a nil
value,

in considering whether impairment is reguired the
Company's consideration of impairment indicalors
such as reduced capacity, forecasts, market demand
for products, and the condition of the plants was
reviewed. In addition, the foliowing was performedq:

- mills were inspected to identify any damages or non-
operating assets;

- discussions were held with the
engineers and other technicians to
potential impairments: and

Mmanagement,
identify any

- production analyses at the varicus mills were
performed and compared to standard capacity to
assist in identifying possible impairment indicators.

Based on the tests performed, we are of the view that
property, plant and equipment appear to be valued
appropriately. J

S\t
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S.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
3. |Valuation of stock-in-trade

The total value of stock-in-frade at the|We assessed the appropriateness of management
reporting date amounts to Rs.3.222 billion|assumptions applied in calcutating the value of stock-in

representing 48% of the Company's totalltrade and validated the valuation by taking foliowing
curent assets (2017 Rs.3.009 billion, 60%|steps:

of the Company's total Current assets).
Stock-in-trade at the reporting date mainly|- assessed whether the Company's accounting policy
includes raw materials and finished goods| for inventory valuation is in line with the applicable
(note 12). financial reporting standards;

The valuation of finished goods at cost has|- attended the inventory count at the year-end and
different components, which includes| reconciled the physical inventory with the inventory
judgment and assumptions in relation to the| lists provided tc ensure the completeness of (he
- allocation of fabour and other various| data:

overheads incurred in bringing  the

inventories to their present location and|- assessed the historical costs recorded in the
conditions. Judgement has also  been inventory valuation by checking purchase invoices on
exercised by the management in[ sample basis;
determining the net realisable vaive of
finished goods.

- tested the reasonability of assumptions applied by the
management in the allocation of labour and other
various overhead costs to inventories;

We identified this matter as key in our audit{- assessed the management determination of net

due to the judgement and assumption| realisable value of inventories by performing tests on

applied by the Company in determining the| sale prices, secured by the Company for similar
cost and net realisable value of stock-in-| items; and
trade at the reporting date.

- performed net realisable vaiye test to assess whether
the cost of inventories exceeds its nel realisable valye
by detailed review of subsequent sales invoices

Based on the tests performed, we are of the view that

stock-in-trade appears to be valued appropriately.
4. |Trade Debts

At June 30 2018, the Company's gross|we performed following audit procedures:
trade debts aggregated Rs.2.005 billion: an

increase of Rs.1.402 billlen was witnessed|- obtained credit policy with res

pect to lecal and foreign
during the year,

debts and assessed the Company's compiiance of its
policy,

We identified the recoverability of trade
debts as a key aydit matter because[- sought external confirmations from the selected trade
estimating the recoverahle amount involves{ debts of their balances that remained outstanding al

inherent uncertainty  and significant| the year-end and compared replies to the requests:
management judgment.

- tested the accuracy of data on sample basis axtracted
from the Company's accounting system, which is
used to calculate the ageing of trade debis;

- performed subsequent check of selected debtor
balances to review recovery from them after the year-

end; N
L ',S\‘d“‘t
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S.No Key audit matters How the matter was addresseq in our audit

- assessed the reasonableness of methods used by the
management to estimate that the doubtfyl debts are
appropriate and ensured that the same is applied
consistently; and

- assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made by the management in the Company's financial
staterments.

Based on the tests performed, we are of the view that
trade debts appear to be stated appropriately,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is respensible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materijal misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in P
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control a

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free fro
fraud or error.

of the financial statements in
akistan and the requirements of

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is respensible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures resporisive to those fisks, and obtain augit

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

o W
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e Obtain an understanding of internal centrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the Company’s interna! control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisls related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If

as a going ¢oncern,

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
a manner that achieves fajr presentation

including the
and evemnts in

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, i
we identify during our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account haye

been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

, profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 {XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extende

d during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d)

The engagement partner on the audijt resulting in this independent auditors' report is Mr. Nafees ud din

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHR! & co.,

LAHORE; .S\A\*cr_ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Praxity:
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RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long term investments
Long term deposits
Deferred tax asset

Current assets ,
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Prepayments and other receivables
Short term investments
Tax refunds and export rebate
due from the Govenment
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital
lssued, subscribed and paig-up
share capital
Reserves

Revaiuation surplus on freehold land

Unappropriated profit

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividends
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings

Current portion _oT non-current liabilities

Taxation

Total liabilities
Contingencios and commitments

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

10

11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23

24
25

26

27

28

29
30

3

2018
Rupees

5,633,4B6,076
3,673,838

{Re-stateq)

2017
Rupees

5,371,085,822

(Re-stated)
July 01,
2016
Rupees

5,166,040,134

4,620,068 5,566,298
837,699,969 855,743,910 795,659,234
21,019,180 19,725,230 15,572,179
66,139,780 55,179,108 50,958,382
6,562,018,843 6.306,354,138 6.033,796,227
220,724,258 182,141,103 182,572,254
3,222,131,101 3,009,200,849 2,346,348 668
2,005,912,705 603,771,424 528,177,761
263,590,052 308,054,655 392,010,201
27,213,598 30,943,544 31,096,187
106,535,112 109,921,577 110,577 868
779,695,949 656,266,867 553,325,470
79,087,040 96,630,056 77,390,062 |

6.704,889,815

4,996,930,075

4,221,498,471

13,266,908,658

11,303,284,213

10,255,294 693

700,000,000

700,000,000 700,000,000

308,109,370 308,109,370 308,109,370
175,934,950 179,321,415 179,877,706
949,485,622 634,324,622 634,324,622
1,968,262,404 1,737,649,032 1,651,175,945
3,401,792,346 2,859,404 439 2,773,587,643

1,199,425 451

14,403,826
267,704,556

1,481,533,833

1,762,343,226

1,269,672
184,810,887

1,943,687 503

2,951,747
154,870,599 |

1,948,523 785

2,101,509,849

1,322,614,366

871,920,335 864,045 496

16,215,618 5,060,952 4,942 513
159,677,919 132,680,279 103,341,124
6,080,169,606 4,581,655,931 3,559,807 898
669,475,954 833,442 716 744,035,075
135,429,016 70,595,775 104,025,100
8,383,582,479 6,485,355,989 5,380,197 206
9,865,116,312 8,443,879,774 7,481,707,055

13,266,908,658

11,303,284,213

10,255 204 698

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Director

QW

Chief Financial Officer




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2018
*ﬁ+———_____4__

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Other income

Other expenses

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Share of loss of Associates
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share

Note
32
33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

2018
Rupees

13,913,860,865
(12,568,217,349)

2017
Rupees

11,341,733,661
(10,357,639,420)

1,345,643,516
(143,632,529)
(166,021,698)

984,094,241
(116,530,079)
(146,017,955

99,347,829 23,333,455
(50,012,454) (25,573,828)
1,085,324,664 719,305,834
(622,203,568) (539,521,175)
463,121,096 179,784,659

(21,670,075)

(12,001,169)

441,451,021 167,783,490
130,871,945 66,565,491
310,579,076 101,217,999

10.08 3.29

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer

S



RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income / (loss):

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to statement of profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income
of an Associated Company

Impact of tax

Loss on remeasurement of
available-for-sgle investments

ltems that will not be reclassified
to statement of profit or loss

{Loss) / gain on remeasurement on
staff retirement benefit - gratuity

Impact of tax

Surplus arisen upon revaluation of freehold tand

Total comprehensive income for the year

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
310,579,076 101,217,999
3,241,134 210,845
(939,929) (38,270)
2,301,205 174,575
(3,386,465) (656,291)
(42,231,656) 586,949

6,181,152 (100,967)
(36,050,504) 485,982
315,161,000 0
588,604,312 101,222,265

The annexed notes form an integral part of thess financial statements.

Chief Executive _ Director

SWive

Chief Financial Officer



RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Caplial Resarves Revenue
: Falr value
Share Revaluation reserve on .
capltal rsehalr: surplus on G:s"j;:l avallable-for- Uar{:dppr;;rtl- Total
PrOMIUM | reahold land| "o5° sale p
Investments
Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2014 308,109,370 41,081,250 ¢ 74,171,959 64,724,407 1,651,175,945 2,139,263,021
Impact of re-statemesnt {hote G} 0 0 634,324,622 0 0 1] 634,324 622
Balance as at July 01, 2018 _
- re-stated 308,109,370 41,081,250 634,324,622 74,171,969 64,724 497 1,651,176,545  2,773,587,642
Transactlon with ownerg:
Cash dividend at the rate
of Re.0.50 per ordinary share for
the yoar ended June 20, 2014 /] 0 0 a 0 (15405489 (1 5.405,469)
[Total comprehensive Income for
the year ended June 30, 2017:
- proflt for the year - -0 )] 0 0 0 101,217,999 101,217,999
- other comprehensive -
{loss) ! Incame 0 0 0 (656,201} 660,557 4,266
0 0 0 o (656,291) 101,878,556 101,222,265
Balance as at June 30, 2017
- re-staled 308,109,370 41,081,250 634,324 622 74,171,958 64,068,206 1,737,649,032 2,859,404,439
Transactlon with owners:
Cash dividend at the rate
of Rs.1.50 per ordinary ehare for
the year ended June a0, 2017 0 a 1] [ 1] (45,216,405} 146.215,405}
Total comprehensive lnc_:_orne for
the year ended June 30,2018:
- profit for the year 0 0 0 0 0 310,579,076 310,579,076
- ather comprehensiva
incoms / loss 0 0 316,181,000 0 {3,386,455) (33,749,299} 278,025,236
0 0 315,161,000 0 {3.386,465) 276,829,777 588,604,312
Balance as at June 30, 2018 308,108,370 41,081,250 944,485,622 74,171,959 60,681,741 1,968,262,404 3,401,792 346

The annexed notes form an Integral part of these financlal etaternents.

Chilef Executive

Director

S\

Chlef Flnancial Officer



RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
____'__———-——_________'____

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note
Cash generated from operations 42
Finance cost paid
Workers' (profit) participation fund paid
Taxes paid - net |
Staff retirement benefits (gratuity) paid

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets
Long term deposits
Long term investments made

Net cash used in nvesting activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finances - net
Lease finances - net
Dividend paid
Short term borrowings - net
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year

Cash and cash équivalents - at end of the year

2018
Rupees

90,274,790
(594,852,666)
(9,796,070)
(28,680,736)
(25,129,544)

(568,184,226)

2017
Rupees

261,872,682
(519,321,830)
(19,614,540)
(77,706,323)
(24,242,938)

(228,076,444)
30,310,051
(1,293,950)

0

(379,012,949)

(199,060,343)

(445,335 832)
6,265,956
(4,153,051)
(71,466,422)

(732,303,381)

(514,689,349)

(76,765,973)

18,552,998 (16,852,738}
(35,061,739) (15,287,030)
1,498,513,675 1,021,848,033
T
749,701,553 912,942 292
(17,543,016) 19,239,004
96,630,056 77,390,062
79,087,040 96,630,056

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer

SWirte




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORT

HE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

- e T YL &V D

1.

(a)

(b)

{c)

3.2

3.3

3.4

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public
limited company on April 07, 1990 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the
Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. The
Company commenced its operations on May 14, 1990 and is principally engaged in the

at second Floor, Trust Plaza, L. M.Q. Road, Multan and its mills are iocated at Fazalpur
Khanewal Road, Multan and Mukhtarabad, Chak Beli Khan Road, Rawat, Rawalpindi.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

The exchange rate of USD to PKR has increased from PKR 104.80 as at June 30, 2017
to PKR 121.60 as at June 30, 2018.

Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 to the financial statements of the

Company, amounts reported for the previous years have been restated. For detailed
information please refer to note 6.

For a detailed discussion about the Company’s performance please refer to the Directors’
report.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the

Internationat Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017; and

- Prqvisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed. ' '

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements
have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated.

Key judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statemen
standards as applicable in Pakistan
estimates. In addition, it requires mana
applying the Company's accounting
judgement or complexity,
the financial statements, a
and relate primarily to:

ts in conformity with the accounting and reporting

requires the use of certain critical accounting
gement to exercise judgement in the process of
policies. The areas involving a high degree of
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
re documented in the following accounting policies and notes,



RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LiiTen )

4.1

(a)

(b}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN s

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment - notes 5.1 & 7.1,

- Useful lives, residual values and amortisation method of intangible assets - notes
2.2 &8.

- Provision for impairment of inventories - notes 5.4, 5.5 11 & 12.

- Provision for doubtful trade debts and other receivables - note 5.6.

- Impairment loss of nen-financial assets other than inventories - note 5.8.
- Obligation of staff retirement benefits (gratuity) - notes 5.10 & 25

- Estimation of provisions - note 5.12,

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - notes 5. 1 3& 31,

- Current income tax €xpense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred
tax asset (for carried forward tax losses) - notes 5.15. 10 & 30.

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO
EXISTING STANDARDS

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards
that are effective in current year

the changes in fiabilities arising from financing activities will be identified
reconciliation of the opening to closing balance is not specifically required but instead the
information can pe provided in other ways. In the first year of adoption,

information need not be provided. The amendments have only resulted in some
additional disclosures in the Company's financial statements,

IAS 12 Income taxes’ (Amendment), On recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealiseq
losses. These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealiseq
losses clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that ar

¢ not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRSs and interpretations that are
mandatory for companies having accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018
but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's

operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the
following:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ is applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after
January 01, 2018. This standard has been notified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 01, 2018, This standard replaces the guidance in 1AS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’. It includes requirements on the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses

model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. The Company is yet to
assess the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with custome
beginning on or after January 01, 2018. This standard has been notified by the SECP to

IAS - 18 '‘Revenue’, and IAS 11 , 'Construction contracts', and related interpretations. The
Company is yet to assess the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ is applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after January 01,
2018. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17, ‘Leases' and is a far
reaching change in accounting by lessees in particular. Under |IAS 17, lessees were
required fo make a distinction between a finance lease (on statement of financial
position) and an operating lease (off statement of financial position). IFRS 16 now
requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-
of-use asset' for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional
exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this
exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the
same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as
well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be

IAS 23, 'Borrowing costs' is applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after

January 01, 2019.The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle.
The amendment ¢larifies that the

borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that s
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IFRIC 23, 'Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ is applicable to accounting periods

- beginning on or after January 01, 2019. This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and

measurement requirements of IAS 12 'Income taxes’, are applied where there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to recognise and
measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty
over a tax treatment. An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity
where there is uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax
authority. The IFRIC applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where there is an
uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax
bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. The Company is yet
to assess the full impact of this interpretation on its financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all pericds

presented in these financial statements, except for the change as indicated below in note
8. ' ’

Property, plant and equipment
Owned
Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land and capital work-in-
progress are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount whereas capital work-in-progress is
stated at cost including, where relevant, related finance costs less impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Normal
repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.
Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land are recognised,
net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previausly
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining
surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or
loss,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work-in-progress) over their remaining useful lives, using the reducing balance
method at rates specified in note 7.1 to the financial statements.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in

which an asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in
which the asset is disposed-off.

Disposal_.

Gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in other income or other operating expenses in the statement
of profit or loss. In case of the sale of revalued freehold land, the attributable revaluation

surplus remaining in the revaluation surplus on frechold land is transferred directly to
unappropriated profit.
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Judgment and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Leased

Lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership is
classified as finance lease. Assets subject to finance lease are initially recognised at the
tower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and fair

value of the assets. Subsequently these assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

The related rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in fiabilities against
assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long-term
depending upon the timing of payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of rental is
taken to statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Depreciatlon

Depreciat'ion on assets subject to finance lease is taken to statement of profit or loss at

the rates stated in note 7.1 applying reducing balance method to write-off cost of the

assets over their estimated remaining useful life in view of certainty of ownership of
assets at the end of lease period.

Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset

is acquired while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is dispcsed-
off.

Finance cost and depreciation on leased assets are taken to statement of profit or loss
currently.

Intangible
Measurement
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses. Amortisation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets over their

estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method at the rate specified in note 8.1 to
the financia! statements.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no
amortisation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed-off.

Gain and-losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit
or loss.

Judgmen't' and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimate is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Investments
Investments in equity instruments of Associated Companies

Associated Companies, where the Company holds 20% or more of the voting power of
the investee company and where the Company has significant influence, but not control,
over the financial and operating policies, are accounted for using the equity method.
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Under equity method the investments in Associated Companies are initially recognised at
cost and the carrying amounts are increased or decreased to recognise the Company's
share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies after the date of acquisition. The
Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies is recognised in the
Company's statement of profit or loss. Distributions received from Associated Companies
reduce the carrying amount of investments. Adjustments to the carrying amounts are also
made for changes in the Company's proportionate interest in the Associated Companies
arising from changes in the Associated Companies' equity that have not been recognised

in the Associated Companies' profit or loss. The Company's share of those changes is
recognised directly in equity of the Company.

The carrying amount of investments is tested for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell) with its
carrying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short
term fluctuations in price or dealer margin are classified as 'investments at fair value
through profit or loss'. These are initially recognised on trade date at cost being the fair
value of the consideration given and derecognised by the Company on the date it
commits to sell them off. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as
and when incurred. At each statement of financial position date, fair value is determined
on the basis of year-end bid prices obtained from the Pakistan Stock Exchange

quotations. Any resultant increase / decrease in fair value is recognised in statement of
praofit or loss for the year.

Held to maturity

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.
Held to maturity investments are initially recognised at cost inclusive of transaction cost
and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be sold
In response to the need for liquidity are classified as available for sale. Available for sale
investments are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these are stated at fair values unless fair values cannot be
measured reliably, with any resulting gains and losses are taken directly to statement of
comprehensive income until the investment is disposed-off or impaired. At each reporting
date, these investments are remeasured at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably
measured. At the time of disposal, the respective surplus or deficit is transferred to
statement of profit or loss. Fair value of quoted investments is their bid price on Pakistan
Stock Exchange at the statement of financial position date. Unquoted investments, where

active market does not exist, are carried at cost as it is not possible to apply any other
valuation methodology.

Investmehts, intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of
financial position date or to be sold to raise operating capital, are included in current
assets. All other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the

appropriate classification of its investments at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates
such designation on a regular basis.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investments.
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Available for sale investments are tested for impairment at each reporting date.
Investments are considered to be impaired if there is a significant or prolonged deciine in
the fair value of the investments at the reporting date,

Stores, Spares and loose tools

Usable stores, spares and loose toois are valued principally at weighted average cost,
while items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost
comprising invoice value Plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value except for waste stock,
which is valued at net realisable value.

Cost has been determined as foliows:

- Raw materials Weighted average cost
- Work in process and . Cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate
finished goods manufacturing overheads.

Materials in transit comprise of invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Judgment and estimates

Trade debts and other receivables

Measurement

Trade debts are initially recognised at original invoice amount, which is the fair value of

consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less provision
for doubtful debts, if any.

Impairm_ént

A provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to coflect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the trade debts and other receivables. The amount of

the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Bad debts are written-off in
the statement of profit or loss on identification,

Judgment and estimates

The allowance for doubtfy] debts of the Company is based on the ageing analysis and
Management'’s continuous evaluation of the recoverability of the outstanding receivables.
In assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, management considers, among
other factors, the creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and .cash equivalents are carried in the statemént of financial position at cost. For

the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash-in-
hand and balances with banks.
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Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date 1o
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss, unless the relevant asset s carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
fmpairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the
immediately in the statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at ar
amount in accordance with the revaluation model. Any reversal of an impairment |
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

reversal
evalued
0ss of a

Borrowings and borrowing costs

transaction cost. Subsequent to initiat recognition, these are stated at amortised cost with

Borrowing costs incurred on long term finances directly attributable for the construction/
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalised upto the date the respective assets are

available for intended use. All other mark-up, interest and other related charges are taken
to the statement of profit or loss,

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

independent Actuary.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of com
the period in which these occur and
statement of profit or loss.

prehensive income in
past-service costs are recognised immediately in the

Trade and bther payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not hilled to the
Company.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation,
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obij

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
to settle the present obligation at the end of reportin
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

tegal or
required
gation.

of the consideration required
g period, taking into account the risks
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513  Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company:

- has a possible obligation as a resulf of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or hon-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the abligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

9.14 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

5.15
(a)

(b)

These are initially recorded at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and subsequently measured at fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates
certain derivatives as cash flow hedges.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between the
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an on going basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes

in cash flow of hedged items. Derivatives are carried as asset when the fair value is
positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in statement of comprehensive income. The

gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in statement of
profit or loss.

Amounts accumulated in- statement of comprehensive
statement of profit or loss in the periods when the hedged
profit or loss. However, when the forecast hedged transactio
a non-financial asset or a liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in statement
of comprehensive income are transferred from statement of comprehensive income and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

income are recognised in
item will effect statement of
n results in the recognition of

Any gains or losses arising from change in fair value derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are taken directly to statement of profit or loss.

Taxation
Current

Charge for current taxation is based on
after taking into account tax credits and
minimum tax, or provisions of alternative
under final tax regime, taxation is based on
Deferred

taxable income at the current rates of taxation
tax rebates available, if any, or provisions of
corporate tax. However, for income covered
applicable tax rates under such regime.

The Company accounts for deferred taxation usin
differences arising between the tax base of assets and iabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognised for taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary

» Unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax ig charged or
credited to the statement of profit or loss.

g the liability method on temporary
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the

temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they refate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are
recognlsed in the period in which these are approved.

Financial instruments
(a) Initial recognition

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the
Company becomes a party {o the contractual provisions of the instrument. At the
time of initial recognition all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received for it.

(b) Derecognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of the
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

Financtal instruments include trade debts, loans & advances, other receivables, short
term invesiments, trade deposits, bank balances, long term finances, liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease, trade & other payables, unclaimed dividends, accrued
mark-up and short term borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.,

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised

amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and to seftie the liabilities simultaneously.

Foreign currency transactions -

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated in Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold
net of discounts and sales tax. Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred, i.e. on dispatch in case of local sales and on preparation of bill
of lading 'in case of exports, and when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue, and
the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be measured reliably.
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Return on deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and applicable rate of return.

Mark-up income is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the agreed mark-up rate applicable.

Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when right to receive
such dividend and bonus shares is established.

Export duty drawback is recognised on accrual basis.
Segment reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internat reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets consist primarily of
property, plant & equipment, stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade. Segment

liabilities. comprise of long term finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance
lease, short term borrowings and trade & other payables.

Related party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on commercial terms and
conditions.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Section 235 (Treatment of surplus arising out of revaluation of fixed assets) of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 has not been carried forward in the Companies
Act, 2017. Previously, section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 specified
the accounting treatment and presentation of the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets,
which was not in accordance with the IFRS requirements.

Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements of international Accounting Standard

(IAS) 16, Property, plant and equipment, surplus on revaluation of fixed assets will now
be presented under equity.

Following the application of IAS 16, the Company's policy for surplus on revaluation of
freehold land stands amended as follows:

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land are recognised
in statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders'
equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in
statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to
the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retfospectively in accordance
with the requirements of IAS 8 *Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors' and comparative figures have been restated.
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As at June 30, 2018

As previously As restated  Restatement As previously Asrestated  Restatement
reported reported
Rupees

Effect on statement of
financial positlon
Surplus on revaluation of
freehold land 634,324,622 0 (634,324822) 634,324,622 0 (634,324622)
Equity 0 634324622 634,324,622 0 634324622 634,324,622
Effect on statement of
changes in equity
Capital reserve 0 634324622 634324622 D 534324622 634,324,622

There was no effect on statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income
and statement of cash flows due to the retrospective application of aforementioned

change in accounting policy.

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
_ Note
Operating fixed assets 7.1

Capital work-in-progress:
- civil works and buildings
- advance for purchase of land
- advance against vehicles
- plant and machinery
- electric installations

2018
Rupees

5,624,813,055

2017
Rupees

5,344,973 287

939,021 170,176

0 23,343,939

7,734,000 0

0 436,520

0 2,161,900

8,673,021 26,112,535
5,633,486,076 5,371,085,822
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" RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

7.2

7.3

7.4

(a)

(b)

{14) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company on August 07, 2017 has carried-out revaluations of its freehold land
situated at Mouza Karpaal Pur, Khanewal Road, Multan and Mukhtara Abad,
Rawat, Rawalpindi. The revaluation exercises have been conducted by an
independent valuer [MYK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. Shafaat Colony, Al-Tamash Road,
Multan]. Freehold land has been revalued on the basis of fair market values and it

has resulted in revaluation surplus aggregating Rs.315.161 miflion as worked-out
below:

Rupees
Cost / revaluation as at June 30, 2017 752,939,000
Revalued amount as at August 07, 2017 1,068,100,000
Revaluation surpius arisen upon latest revaluation 315,161,000

Had there been no revaluations, book value of freehold land would have been
Rs.118.615 million.

{c) Based on the revaluation reports dated August 07, 2017, the forced sale values of
the revalued freehold land have been assessed at Rs.854.480 million,
Depreciation for the year has been 2018 2017
apportioned as under: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 33 233,105,235 217,606,120
Administrative expenses 35 15,682,966 15,492,116
248,788,201 233,098,236
Particulars of immovable property
o -Usage of Total Area Covered Area
Location immovable (square feet) (In square feet)
property q ApPProx,
Mouza Karpaal Pur,
Khanewal Road, Multan. industrial 4,102,920 1,010,307
Mukhtara Abad, Rawat,
Rawalpindi. Industrial 1,424,250 231,242
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{T2) NI ED I THE FINANUIAL STAITEMENTYS
7.5 Dispasal l;l' apereling fixed wasata
Parliculars Cont I:::‘::I:I:::l:: VB;:: CL:::;:;: Galn/{loes) ::::::; Saild to ! claimed from
Finenclal year sndad June 30, 2018:
Plant and machinary
Alr jel loome 152,005,015 122,683,384 28,341,61 25,744,488 {3,577,143} Nagatiation Nikun] Synlab {Put ) Ltd. Azad Chowk,
Bhibwara, Indln.
ABS pump 682,600 24,378 618,122 1,108,000 471,878 --da-- Muhammad Altaf, Karach|,
Chillar 140,000 70,913 €8,087 1,100,000 1,030,913 --do-- Wuhammad Allaf, Karachi.
152,797,615 122,778,675 20,018,840 27,544, 488 (2,074,352}
Efeciric sppliances 8,100 2,331 3,769 7,560 3791 --do--
Yehicis
Suzukl cullus 288,000 473,706 1b4.204 187,644 3,350 | Company policy Mr, Salim Ahmed (employaa).
Dalhalsu courn T2h128 5BEST2 140,158 142,815 2458 | --do-- Mut d Nasir Iqba! {) I b
Surukl culles 918,000 682,548 233,459 237,922 4186 | --do-- Shelich Anjum Jamil lemployne).
Suzuk! cullus 1,405 5a5 1,058,986 5,518 424 437 79,858 | --do-- Muhammad Waqas Nasir jamployea).
Suzukl cullue 916,000 690,BA4 225,116 240,450 15,334 | --do-- Mr. Asit Ali Malik (amployee|.
Toyou corolla 1,514,000 1,726,416 3BT, 584 493 300 105,716 | --do-- Mr, Wahaad Ahmad lempleyae).
Suzukl Ewlft 1,007,210 749,364 257,844 308,450 50804 | --do-- Mr. Jawad Ahmad AH Bhuhe
{ex-employee]_
Honds CD 70 54,273 3,618 50,855 40,000 9,345 { Insurance Clalm Premler Insurance Lid,
Honde CD 70 73,100 g, 127 34,973 30,000 (4,973)| Company palicy Mr. Khurram Shehead (ampioyee!),
Honda GO 70 T0.E0M 45,811 25,280 34,000 B710| --do-- Mr. Jaml| Apjum {employea).
Honda CD 70 10,001 46,074 494,827 34,000 8,173 ] --do-- Nr. Ghulam Abbas [emplayea).
Honde CD 70 88,586 51,820 17,768 32,850 15,184 | --do-- Muh i Farqog [=mployae).
Honde CD 70 GG 126 48,734 17,052 13,180 (2,872} --da-- d Usman (employee).
Honda CD 70 58,370 35,004 23,288 13,600 {9,888)| --go-- M. B Il Hussein {employes),
Honde CD 70 £B,600 50,413 a,187 28,195 20008 | --do-- Mr. Ghulam Shabear {amployee),
Honde GO 70 56,261 44,288 21972 34,000 12,028 | --do-- Mr. Rlaz Ahmed {employse},
Honda G0 70 69,708 51,365 18,343 33,860 15,247 | --dp-- Mr. Khelid Javed {emplayes),
B,012,389 5,985,009 2,026,380 2,358,003 131,623
Toial 160,816,004 128,767,015 32,048,988 3,310,051 {1,738,938)
Financlal yeer endad June 20, 2017:
Plant & machinary
Diesal generalor 4,210,103 735,325 1474777 932,423 {2,542,354)  Megallallon  Mr. Abdul Majeed.
Air compressor [ngareoll &8 kliowatt 1,000,600 215,925 74,078 221,473 [552,502] -do- «do-
Alr epmprasaor screw fypa B0 kilawatl 5B3,098 186,274 397,622 168,104 [231 518} -do- -dno -
Air compressor Ingarsall 85 kilowatl 166,104 52,890 113,114 o {113,114) -do - -do-
5,960,103 1,190,515 4,759,580 1,326,000 13,449,588}
DHlee equipmarnt
Microsoft wind ows -0e- Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd,
professional 10 B4-bil 12,800 534 12,267 12,800 5313 (an Asaoclated Company).
Luptop HP com IS 92,000 2,833 88,167 62,500 3,034 -do. ~da-
104,800 A,36T 100,434 104,800 4.%a7
Fumnilure and Nxturos
Offlce mvelving chair 22,790 D 227840 22,790 1] -do- -do-
Vehlcian
Nlssen Yan 3,386,213 3,327,080 58,247 230,000 231,763 -da- Muhammad Shahzad.
Suzukl Mahran Aa3,890 358, Too 25,180 240,000 214,810 -de - Muhammad Magbool.
Sueuki Pick up Van 360,824 315,390 41,434 330,000 2pp 568 -do - Muhammad Rizwan.
Honda Clyle 2,442,800 1,114,376 1,120,424 1,350,000 B20,578 -do- Mr. Akmal Hussaln.
Dalhaisu Cours 924385 570,801 251,684 353,411 {223 - do - Mr. Salmen Khan Durrani {emplayes).
Talhelsu Coure 844,040 561,056 352,984 3gz,003 [} -do - Muhammad Adil Ayaul Khan (employee).
Henda City 221,074 148,356 72,118 BOC, 500 827,782 | Company pollcy Muh 1 Anghar (employed).
Henda S0 70 66,200 53,183 13,011 31,450 18,439 -do - Mr. Rafique Zahld (employas),
Honda CD 70 5,800 62,523 12,977 3,700 18,722 -to - far. Sul Jameel {amployee).
Honds CD 7o E68,788 47,767 15,018 32,950 1381 -do- Muhammad Imran [amployee).
Hande CD 70 65,786 43,934 23,252 5,000 11,748 | Insurance Clsim EFU inaurance Compeny Lid,
Hande CD 70 70,204 39,103 31,101 67,382 2E,261 -de - EFU Insurence Campany Lid.
Honda CD TR T0,801 43,746 21,155 24,000 8,845 | Company pollcy Mr. Rwo Ahmad Wagas (emplayee],
Honda CD T 740,801 42,725 27176 34,000 6,824 -da- M d Sal Azhar [amployee]
Handa CD 70 81,520 34,244 27,278 34,000 6,724 -do - Hufizx Bashir Ahmad {employas).
Henda SO 70 72,150 30,898 42,251 34,860 (7,301} -do- Mr. Amir Hussain Magvi (employae|,
Henda CD YR 63400 51,212 12,158 36,000 23,812 «do- Sheikh Zaeshan Ahmad (smployes).
Honda CD To 1 1 o 10,000 10,000 Weopotiation  Scrapped.
9,338,815 7,040,878 2,200,087 4,818,348 2,518,268
Total 15,427 668 8,235 160 7,191,908 9,285,954 {925 952)
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8.1

INTANGIBLE ASSETS . Computer software

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

Cost at beginning of the year 9,462,295 9,462,295
Less: amortisation:

- at beginning of the year 4,842,227 3,895,997

- charge for the year 946,230 946,230 ‘

- at end of the year 5,788,457 4,842,227
Book value as at June 30, 3,673,838 4,620,068

Amortisation is charged to income applying the straight-line method at the rate of 10%

per annum.

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Associated Companies - Un-quoted
Fatima E'nergy Ltd. (FEL)

80,016,370 (2017: 80,016,370) ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each - cost

800,054,340 800,054,340
Equity held: 14.04% (2017: 14.11%)
Share of post acquisition loss and other
comprehensive income - net (15,776,852) (12,418,345)
784,277,488 787,635,995
Share of: .
- loss for the year (18,388,027) (6,294,314)
- other comprehensive income 3,241,134 215,498
Adjustment based on preceding year's audited
financial statements (2,737,676) (5,298,277)
Gain on dilution of investment in FEL 9.2 385,000 8,018,586
766,777,919 784,277,488
Fatima Transmission Company Ltd. (FTCL)
7,187,500 (2017: 7,187,500) ordinary shares '
of Rs.10 each - cost 71,875,000 71,875,000
Equity held: 31.25% (2017: 31.25%)
Share of post acquisition [oss and other
comprehensive income (408,578) o
' 71,466,422 71,875,000
Share of:
- loss for the year {4,110) (408,578)
Adjustment based on preceding year's audited
financial statements {540,262) 0
70,922,050 71,466,422
837,699,969 855,743,910




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED (17)

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 5 TATEMENTS

The detailé of investments acquired by the Company in FEL are as follows:

Shares acquired on No. of shares acquired

March 14, 2014 9,938

May 13, 2014 998

July 24, 2014 34,693,441

December 4, 2014 42,299,999

May 31, 2016 3,011,994
80,016,370

years due to which percentage holding of the Company
IAS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
has been-incorporated and resuitant gain recognised in

respective financial years.

The Company has commitment of Rs.67.956 rhillion
of stand-by letters of credit to inject equity in FEL as

The summary of financial information of FEL based on its
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to carrying amount
Opening net assets

Shares issued during the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income / {loss)

Closing net assets

in FEL has decreased. As per

the change in investee's equity

statement of profit or josgs of the

(2017: Rs.1,000 million} in the form
disclosed in note 31.7.

audited / un-audited financial

2018 2017
Un-audited Audited
----- Rupees in thousand -----
26,985,688 24,603,292
1,367,247 2,675,254
28,352,935 27,278,546
15,460,036 15,832,522
7,472,481 5,947 874
22,932,517 21,780,396
5,420,418 2,498,150
5,498,150 2,560,634
30,105 0
(130,922) {59,321}
23,085 (3,163)
5,420,418 5,498,150
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9.5

9.6

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018 2017
Un-audited Audited
----- Rupees in thousand -----
Company's share percentage 14.04% (2017: 14.1 1%)
Company's share 761,027 775,789
Miscellaneous adjustments 0 2,738

Adjustment based on preceding year's audited _
financial statements (2,738)

0
Goodwilt 8,489 5,750
Carrying amount of investment 766,778 784 277
Summarised statement of profit or loss
Loss for thé year 107,837 59,321

The Company has invested in FEL in the form of shares and stand-by letters of credit.
The limit for investment in FEL as approved by members of the Company is Rs.7,523

million. FEL is an Associated Undertaking of the Company by vitue common
directorship.

FTCL was incorporated in Pakistan on December 286, 2014 as a public limited company
and has not commenced its operations by June 30, 2018. The principal activity of FTCL
includes operation and maintenance of transmission lines, electrical transmission

facilies, electrical circuits, transformers & sub-stations and the movement & delivery of
electric power.

The summary of financial information of FTCL based on its audited / un-audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Summarised statement of financial position 2018 2017
Un-audited Audited
o e Rupees in thousand -----
Non-current assets 805,073 756,612
Current assets 216 1,083
805,989 757,695
Non-curr_ent liabilities 394,737 421,053
Curtent liabilities | 189,787 115,164
) 584,524 536,217
Net assets 221,465 221,478
Reconciliation to carrying amount
Opening net assets 221,478 123,763
Shares issued during the year 0 100,751
Loss for the year (13) (3,038)

Closing net assets 221,465 221,478




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

9.7

10.

10.1

11.

{19)

2018
Un-audited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS

2017
Audited

----- Rupees in thousand -----

Company's share percentage 31.25% (2017:31 .25%)
Company’s share

69,208 69,212
Miscellaneous adjustments 0 540
Adjustment for preceding year loss based on
audited financial statements (540) 0
Goodwill 2,254 1,714
Carrying amount of investment 70,922 71,466
Summarised statement of profit or loss
Loss for the year (13) (3,036)

FTCL
DEFERRED TAX ASSET 2018 2017
This is composed of the following: Note Rupees Rupees
Deductible'temporary differences
anising in respect of:
- Unabsorbed tax losses and minimum
tax recoverable against normal
tax charge in future years 10.1 444,356,323 488,256 253
- staff retirement benefit - gratuity 39,184,439 31,806,860
-investments in Associated Companies 5,010,220 2,784,085
488,550,982 522,847,198
Taxable temporary differences
arising in respect of-
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances (423,042,461) (453,696,673)
- lease finances 631,259 (13,971,417)
(422,411,202) (467 668,090
66,139,780 55,179,108

been recognised in the

management intends to re-assess the recognition of g
2019.

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores including in-transit inventory
valuing Rs.10.582 million (2017: Rs. Nil)

84,716,299 69,208,304

Spares 135,996,583 112,999,231
Loose tools 241,398 163,590
220,954,280 182,371,125
Less: provision for obsolete items (230,022) (230,022)
220,724,258 182,141,103
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12.

121

12.2

13.

13.

1

14.

(20)

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Note

Raw materials including in-transit inventory
valuing Rs.186.625 million {2017: Rs. Nil)

Work-in-process

Finished goods
Waste

Stocks valuing Rs.46.744 million (2017 Rs.21.581 milli

various parties for processing and finishing.

Raw materials and finished goods inventories
for short term finance facilities (note 28).

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
Export - secured
Local - unsecured
Considered doubtful - unsecured

13.1

Less: provision for doubtful debts

With respect to outstanding foreign debts break-
jurisdiction along with their credit terms is as follo

Foreign jurisdiction Credit terms

Asia Letter of credit
Europe -do -
South America -do -
Asia Contract
Africa - do -
Europe ~do -
South America -do -

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to:
- key ma_na"gement personnel
- employees
- suppliers
Due from related parties
Letters of credit
Margin deposits

14.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018
Rupees

2,085,889,117

2017
Rupees

1,756,403,613

248,384,218 183,721,862
843,240,497 1,011,020,310
44,617,269 58,055,064
887,857,766 1,069,075,374
3,222,131,101 3,009,200,849

on} were in the possession of

are pledged with various banks as security

1,519,112,032 234,782,283
486,800,673 368,989,141

0 7,140,648
2,005,912,705 610,912,072
0 (7,140,648)
2,005,912,705 603,771,424

up of year-end balances in each foreign

1,267,652,276 208,621,822
79,365,018 2,496,375
32,362,262 0

1,379,379 556 211,118,197
31,985,221 8,245,976
28,360,876 7,552,312
79,386,379 0

0 7,865,798

139,732,476 23,664,086
1,519,112,032 234,782 283
2,017,600 2,823,368
171,807,276 142,568,365
32,704,225 58,784,496
28,709,050 28,325,726
408,115 1,091,960
27,943,786 74,460,740
263,590,052 308,054,655




RELIANCE WEAVING MILLS LIMITED

141

(a)
{b)
(c)

14.2

i5.

15.1

16,

16.1

16.2

{21) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Due from related parties 2018 207
_ Note Rupees Rupees

Reliance Commodities {Pvt.) Lid. (a) 2,962,911 3,084,358
Fatima Transmission Company Ltd. (b} 15,314,068 15,314,068
Fatima Energy Ltd. {b) 5,735,180 - 5,884,703
Multan Cioth Finishing Factory (c) 4,406,280 3,942,597
Fatima Cement Ltd. (c) 220,065 0
FatimaFert Ltd. (c) 70,546 0

28,709,050 28,325,726

The advénce carries mark-up at the rate of 1-month KIBOR plus 3% per annum.

The advance carries mark-up at the rate of 1-month KIBOR plus 2.50% per annum.

These balances have arisen due to sharin

g of expenses and on account of trading
transactions.

Maximum aggregate amounts due from related parties at any month-end during the year
aggregated Rs.28.709 million (2017; Rs.76.982 million).

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments 1,466,830 3,232,521
Accrued mark-up _ 15.1 25,559,068 22,930,211
Others ' 187,700 4,780,812

27,213,598 30,943 544

This represents mark-up accrued on advance made to Fatima Energy Ltd. and short term

loans advanced to Reliance Commodities (Pvt) Ltd. and Fatima Transmission Company
Ltd.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS (Available-for-sale) - Quoted
Fatima Fertilizer Company Ltd, (FFCL)
2625167 (2017: 2,625,167) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs.10 each at fair value 16.1 88,441,877 89,098,168
Fair value adjustment (3,386,465) {656,291)
Fair value at end of the year 85,055,412 88,441 877
Others - Un-quoted
Multan Real Estate Company (Pvt.) Ltd. (MREC)

214,797 (2017:214,797) ordinary

shares of Rs.100 each 16.2 21,479,700 21,479,700

Equity held 9.90% (2017:9.90%)

- 106,535,112 109,921,577

FFCL is a related party of the Company; however, considering sharehoiding percentage
in FFCL i.e. 0.13%, the Company does not have significant influence to participate in the

financial and operating decisions of FFCL. Accordingly, investments in FFCL have not
been accounted for using the equity method.

Value of investments based on net assets shown in the un-audited financial statements
of MREC for the year ended June 30, 2018 amounted Rs.21.489 miliion.
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17. TAX REFUNDS AND EXPORT REBATE

NO TES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018 2017
- DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Export rebat_e and duty draw back 250,943.546 78,419,004
Advance income tax 286,059,110 329,136,527
Sales tax refundable 232,461,492 239,636,688
Special excise duty 10,231,801 9,074,648
779,695,949 656,266,867
18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash-in-hand ' 5,052,840 5,328,544
Cash at banks on:
- current accounts 181 73,256,955 90,550,167
- saving accounts 18.2 777,245 751,345
| 74,034,200 91,301,512
79,087,040 96,630,056
18.1 These include foreign currency batance of U.8.$ 4,646 (2017: U.S.$ 33,777), which has
been translated in Pak Rupees at the exchange rate ruling on the reporting date.
18.2 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 2.40% to 5.53% (2017: 2.40% to 3.77%) per
annum.
19. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017
(No. of shares)
40,000,000 40,000,000 Ordinary shares
_ of Rs.10 each 400,000,000 400,000,000
30,000,000 30,000,000 Preference shares
of Rs.10 each 300,000,000 300,000,000
70,000,000 70,000,000 700,000,000 700,000,000
20. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017
(No. of shares)
17,801,375 17,801,875 Ordinary  shares of
: Rs.10 each fully paid in
_ cash 178,018,750 178,018,750
13,008,062 13,009,082 Ordinary shares  of
Rs.10 each issued as
. fully paid bonus shares 130,090,620 130,090,620
30,810,937 30,810,937 308,109,370 308,109,370
20.1 Ordinary shares held by the related parties 2018 2017

at the reporting date are as follows:
Reliance Commodities (Pvt.) Ltd.

-- Number of shares --

3

3
Fatima Holding Ltd. 845,705 845,705
. 845,708 845,708
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RESERVES 2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

Composition of reserves is as follows:
Capital reserve

- Share premium 21.1 41,081,250 41,081,250
Revenue reserve _

- General reserve 74,171,959 74,171,959
Fairvafue reserve on available-

forsale investments 21.2 60,681,741 64,068,206

175,934,950 179,321,415

This reserve can be utilised b
of the Companies Act, 2017.

This reserve relates to surplus on remeasurement of available-for-

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON FREEHOLD LAND

As detailed .in note 7.2, revaluation of fre

y the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81

sale investments.

ehold {and during the year has resulted in

surplus aggregating Rs.315.161 million. The year-end balance has been arrived at as

follows:
Re-stated Re-stated
2018 2017 2016
mommmmsemmmmeee RUPEES =-cmememmmaeeaee
Opening balance 634,324,622 634,324,622 634,324 622
Add: surplus arisen on revaluation
carried-out during the year 315,161,000 0 0
949,485,622 634,324.822 634,324,622

Also refer contents of note 6.
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23. LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured 2018 2017
From banking companies / financial Note Rupees Rupees
institutions -

National Bank of Pakistan

{NBP) (LTFF-II} 231 7,750,000 23,250,000
National Bank of Pakistan (DF-1V) 232 67,603,122 90,137,502
Pak Brunei Investment Co. (PBIC)(LTFF)} 23.3 0 12,520,000
Pak Brunei Investment Co. (TF) 23.4 220,000,000 300,000,000
The Bank of Khyber (BoK) 23.5 0 75,000,000
Bank Alfalah Ltd. (BAL) (TF-I) 23.6 22,493,300 52,484,360
Bank Alfalah Ltd. (TF-If) 23.7 24,997,810 74,993 438
Meezan Bank Ltd. (MBL) (DM-1) 23.8 48,180,180 06,360,360
Meezan Bank Ltd. (DM-1I) 23.9 154,648,814 223,223,221
Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural

Investment Company Ltd. (Saudi Pak) 23.10 0 190,907,815
Allied Bank Ltd. (ABL) 23.11 175,000,003 233,333,337
Pak China Investment

Company Ltd. (PCIC) 23.12 125,000,000 250,000,000
Pak Libya Holding Company

(Pvt.) Ltd. (PLHC) 23.13 180,000,000 200,000,000
United Bénk Ltd. (UBL) (NIDF-I) 23.14 150,000,000 210,000,000
United Bank Lid.

(NIDF-II under LTFF scheme) 23.15 484,466,818 360,233,395
Askari Bank Ltd. (Askari) 23.16 200,000,000 200,000,000
Balance as at June 30, 1,860,140,047 2,592,443 428
Less: current portion grouped

under current liabilities:

- NBP (LTFF-l1) 7,750,000 15,500,000
- NBP (DF-1V) 22,534,380 22,534 376
- PBIC (LTFF) 0 12,498,000
- PBIC (TF) 80,000,000 80,000,000
- BoK 0 75,000,000
- BAL (TF-I) 22,493,300 29,991,065
= BAL (TF-I}) 24,997,810 49,995 626
- MBL (DM-I) 48,180,180 48,180,180
- MBL (DM-II) 71,425,593 70,000,000
- Saudi Pak 0 81,817,622
- ABL 58,333,333 58,333,333
- PCIC 125,000,000 156,250,000
- PLHC 60,000,000 40,000,000
- UBL (NIDF-I) 90,000,000 90,000,000
- Askari 50,000,000 0

660,714,596 830,100,202

1,199,425,451

1,762,343,226
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These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2012 to
retire import sight letter of credit. These carry mark-up at the rate of 8-months KIBOR +
2.00%; the effective mark:up rate during the year was 12.70% {2017: 12.70%), These
are repayable in 12 equal half-yearly instalments commenced from January, 2013 and
are secured against first pari passu charge on fixed assets of the Company at 25%
margin and personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of the Company .

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2016 to
retire import sight letter of credit for import of miscellaneous spinning machinery instalied
at spinning Unit of the Company. These carry mark-up at the rate of 3-months KIBOR +
2.25 %, the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged from 5.00% to 8.75% per
annum. These are repayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments commenced from October,
2015, These finances are secured against first pari passu charge on all present and

future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and personal guarantees of all
sponsoring directors of the Company.

These finances were obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2010 to finance
import of 40 sets air jet looms and generator sets by the Company eligible under the
facility and were fully repaid during November, 2017. These carried mark-up at the rate of
10.70% (2017: 10.70%) -and were repayable in 12 equal half-yearly instalments
commenced from May, 2012, These finances were secured against first pari passu

charge on present and future fixed assets of the Company for Rs463.375 million
including land and buildings with 25% margin.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2017 to
finance the mismatch from usage of short term debt for financing the long term assets.
These carry mark-up at the rate of 3-months KIBOR + 1.75%:; the effective mark-up rates
during the year ranged from 7.89% to 8.58% per annum. These are repayable in 15
equal quarterly instalments commenced from September, 2017. These finances are
secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of the

Company (including land and buildings) with 25% margin and personal guarantees of
speonsoring directors of the Company.

These finances were obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 for
refirement of letters of credit for purchase of plant and equipment. These finances were
fully repaid during February, 2018 and carried mark-up at the rate of 3-monihs KIBOR +
1.50%; the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged from 7.64% to 7.66% per
annum. These were repayable in 8 equal half-yearly instalments commenced from July,
2014. These were secured against first pari passu charge on all the present and future
fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and personal guarantees of directors of
the Company.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2013 to

finance capital expenditure in spinning unit of the Company. These carry mark-up at the
rate of 6-months KIBOR + 1.50%: the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged
from 7.65% to 7.71% per annum. These are repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments
commenced from April, 2014, These finances are secured against first registered pari

passu charge over fixed assets of the Company for Rs.200 million with 25% margin and
personal guarantees of directors of the Company.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 to
finance current portion of the long term loans availed by the Company from different
financial institutions, which fell due during the period from October, 2013 to September,
2014. These carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 2%; the effective mark-up
rates during the year ranged from 8.15% to 8.21% per annum. These finances are
repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments commenced from February, 2015. These
finances. are secured against first registered pari passu charge on fixed assets of the
Company for Rs.267 million and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.
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These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 to
finance imported plant and machinery. These carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months
KIBOR + 0.90% (2017: 6-months KIBOR + 1.25%); the effective mark-up rates during the
year ranged from 7.06% to 7.42% per annum. These finances are repayable in 20 equal
quarterly ' instalments commenced from August, 2014. These finances are secured
against exclusive hypothecation charge of Rs.250 million over underlying plant and
machinery against the disbursed amount and additional pari passu hypothecation charge

of Rs.84 million over land, buildings and plant & machinery of the Company to cover the
margin upto 25%.

These finances were obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 to finance
imported plant and machinery. These carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR +
0.90% (2017: 6-months KIBOR + 1.25%); the effective mark-up rates during the year
ranged from 7.04% to 7.94% per annum. These finances are repayable in 20 equal
quarterly instaiments commenced from March, 2015. These finances are secured against
exclusive hypothecation charge of Rs.350 miliion over underlying plant and machinery
against the disbursed amount and additional first pari passu hypothecation charge of
Rs.117 million over land, buildings and plant & machinery of the Company to cover the
margin upto 25% and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.

These finances were obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2013 to finance
expansion plan of the Company and were fully repaid during August, 2017. These carried
mark-up at the rate of 11.40% (2017: 11.40%) per annum. These finances were
repayable in 11 equal half-yearly instalments commenced from June, 2015 and were

secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of the
Company with 25% margin.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 to
finance the textile machinery for expansion in the spinning unit of the Company. These
carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 1.25% (2017: 6-months KIBOR + 1.60%);
the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged from 7.40% to 7.46% per annum.
These finances are repayable in 12 equal half-yearly instalments commenced from
October, 2015 and are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future
fixed assets of the Company for Rs.467 million with 25% margin.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2014 to
reduce the funding gap / mismatch from usage of short term debt for financing long term
assets. These carry mark-up at the rate of 3-months KIBOR + 1.50%; the effective mark-
up rates during the year ranged from 7.64% to 8.00% per annum. These finances are
repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments commenced from June, 2015 and are
secured against first pari passu hypothecation / mortgage charge over all present and

future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and personal guarantees of
sponsoring directors of the Company.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2016 to
reduce the funding gap from usage of short term debt for financing long term assets and
to create cushion in existing short term working capital lines, These carry mark-up at the
rate of 6-months KIBOR + 2%; the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged from
8.14% to 9.04% per annum. These finances are repayable in 10 equal half-yearly
instalments commenced from December, 2017 and are secured against pari passu
charge on fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount and
personal guarantees of all sponsoring directors of the Company.
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finance expansion / BMR done through the Company's own sources. These carry mark-
up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 1.50%; the effective mark-up rates during the year
ranged from 7.65% to 7.71% per annum. These finances are repayable in 10 equal half-
yearly instalments commenced from December, 2015 and are secured against first pari
passu charge of Rs.400 million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company
by way of equitable mortgage of freehold land and buildings and hypothecation of plant &
machinery and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company.

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2017 to
finance BMR / retirement of letters of credit established for import of air jet looms, fired
generator and compressor along with allied parts. These finances carry mark-up at the
rate of 6-months KIBOR + 1.50%; the effective mark-up rates during the year ranged
from 5.00% to 7.71% per annum. These finances are repayable in 16 equal half-yearly
instalments commencing from October, 2019 and are secured against first pari passu
charge on fixed assets (freehold land, buildings and plant & machinery) of the Company
with 25% margin and personal guarantees of three directors of the Company.

During the current year, an amount of Rs.439.838 million (2017: Rs.241.640 million) out
of total finances of Rs.484.467 million from UBL was approved and refinanced by State
Bank of Pakistan under LTFF scheme against imported textile machinery eligible under
the said scheme. This LTFF is repayable within the same period as stated in the
preceding paragraph. Mark-up under SBP's LTFF scheme is chargeable at the rate of 5%

per annum. These finances are secured against the securities as stated in the preceding
paragraph. .

These finances have been obtained during the financial year ended June 30, 2017 to
facilitate the Company with Diminishing Musharaka (sale and buy back) of machinery
(warping machines, sizing machines, air jet weaving looms and power house) These
carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 1.25%; the effective mark-up rates during
the year ranged from 7.39% to 7.76% per annum. These finances are repayabie in 8
equal half-yearly instalments commencing November, 2018 and are secured against first
pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs.266.670 million over all present and future fixed
assets duly registered with SECP with 25% margin.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE - Secured

2018 2017
Paﬁiculars Upto From one Upto From one
P to five Total P io five Tatal
one year one year
years years
Rupees

Minimum lease paymenis ' 10,250,060 17,081,769 27,331,829 3,588,550 1,829,959 5,418,509
Less: finance cost allocated to '

future perjods 1,488,702 847,943 2,336,645 246,036 24237 270,273

_ 8,761,358 16,233,826 24,985184 3,342,514 1,805,722 5148236
Less: security deposits adjustable

on expiry of lease terms 0 1,830,000 1,830,000 0 536,060 536,050
Present vaiue of minimum ' _
lease payments 8,761,368 14,403,826 23,165184 3,342,514 1,269,672 4612186
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The Company has entered into lease agreements with Meezan Bank Ltd. and First Habib
Modaraba for lease of vehicles. The liabilities under the lease agreements are payable in
monthly instalments by January, 2021. The minimum lease payments have been
discounted at implicit interest rates ranging from 6-months KIBOR + 1,50% to 6-months
KIBOR + 2.00% to arrive at their present value; the effective interest rates during the year
tanged from 7.65% to 8.21% per annum. The Company intends to exercise its option to
purchase the leased vehicles upon completion of the respective lease terms. These lease

finance facilities are secured against title of the leased vehicles in the name of lessors
and demand promissory notes.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - Gratuity

The future contribution rates of this scheme include allowance for deficit and surplus.

Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for
valuation:

Significant actuarial assumptions 2018 2017
- discount rate 9.00% 7.75%
- expected rate of growth
per annum in future salaries 8.00% 6.75%
- mortality rates SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
_ Setback 1 year
- withdrawal rates Age-based Age-based
- retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

Amount recognised in the statement of financial positien is the present value of defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date:

The movement in the present value of defined 2018 2017
benefit obligation is as follows: Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 184,910,887 154,870,599
Current service cost 52,334,733 44 520,864
Interest cost. 13,356,824 10,349,312
Benefits paid (25,129,544} (24,242 ,938)
Remeasurements - experience adjustments
and actuarial valuation less / (gain) from
changes in financial assumptions 42,231,656 (586,950)
Closing balance 267,704,556 184,910,887
Expense recognised in statement of
profit or loss
Current se’rvjce cost 52,334,733 44 520,864
Interest cost 13,356,824 10,349,312
65,691,557 54,870,176
Charge for the year has been allocated to:
- cost of sales 58,642,746 49,715,100
- administrative expenses 7,148,811 5,155,076
65,691,557 54,870,176
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Remeasurement recognised in 2018 2017
other comprehensive income Rupees Rupees
Remeasurements - experience adjustments
and actuarial valuation loss / (gain) from
changes in financial assumptions 42,231,656 (586,950)

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustments on
obligation for five years is as follows:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Rupees

Present value of Idefined

benefit obligation 267,704,556 184,910,887 154,870,599 170,383,383 96,055,426

Experience adjustments

on obligation - 42,231,656  (586,950) (44,151,953) 38285637 1658636

Year-end sensitivity analysis: Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in
. Increase Decrease
assumption
Rupees Rupees
Discount rate 1% 248,622,912 289,892,533
Salary growth rate 1% 289,892,533 248,292 214

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2018 is 8 years.

The expected contribution to defined benefit obligation for the year ending June 30, 2019
is Rs.81.852 million.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2018 2017
) Note Rupees Rupees

Trade creditors 525,156,163 404,674,066

Bills payable 26.1 130,344,918 0

Due to Associated Companies 26.2 145,285,528 135,076,181

Accrued expenses 489,697,387 313,860,959

Tax deducted at source 8,307,241 8,297 627

Workers' (pi’ofit) participation fund 26.3 23,607,696 9,796,070

Others 215,433 215,433
1,322,614,366 871,920,336

These are secured against the securities as detailed in note 28.

This represents amounts due to the

following Associated Companies:

- Fatima Fertilizer Company Ltd. 30,610,298 25,131,224

- Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd. 107,076,881 103,267,377

- Pak Arab Fertilizers Ltd. 7,350,425 6,677,580

- Fazal Cloth Mills Ltd. 247,924 0

145,285,528 135,076,181
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Workers' (ﬁrofit) participation fund 2018 2017
(the Fund) Note Rupees Rupees
Opening bél'énce 9,796,070 12,614,540
Add: interest on funds utilised in the
Company's business . 353,262 317,034
10,149,332 19,931,574
Less: paid 'tb workers 9,796,070 19,614,540
353,262 317,034
Add: allocation for the year 23,254,434 9,479,036
Closing balance 23,607,696 9,796,070
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on;
- long term finances 37,990,996 52,230,709
- liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 111,498 113,359
- advance received from Fatima Sugar
Mills Ltd. (an Associated Company) 15,057,885 11,200,677
- short term borrowings 106,517,540 69,135,534
_ 159,677,919 132,680,279
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Short term finances - secured 28.1 5,821,345,019 4,176,395,926
Export finances- secured 28.3 243,267,400 405,260,005
6,064,612,419 4,581,655,931
Temporary bank overdrafts - unsecured  28.4 15,557,187 0

6,080,169,606 4,581,655,931

Short term finance facilities avaitable from various commercial banks under mark-up
arrangements aggregate Rs.8,090 million (2017: Rs.8,945 million) and carry mark-up at
the rates ranging from 6.62% to 8.42% (2017 6.64% to 7.78%) on the outstanding
balances: These facilities are expiring on various dates by March 31, 2019.

Out of the aggregate facilities of Rs.1,480 million (2017. Rs.1,180 million) for opening
letters of credit and Rs.560 million (2017: Rs.295 million) for guarantees, which are the
sub-limits of finance facilities mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the amounts utilised
as at June 30, 2018 were Rs.548.292 million (2017: Rs.145.100 million) and Rs.201.177

million {(2017. Rs.176.800 million) respectively. These facilities are expiring on various
dates by March 31, 2019.

Export finance facilities available from commercial banks aggregate Rs.2,175 million
(2017: Rs.4,580 million). Out of total facllities, the amount utilised aggregate Rs.243.267
million (2017: Rs.405 million). The rates of mark-up range from 1.30% to 3.00% (2017:

0.80% to 4.00%) on the outstanding balances. These facilities are expiring on various
dates by March 31, 2019,

These temporary bank overdrafts have arisen due to issuance of cheques for amounts in
excess of balances in bank accounts.
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viscose and fabric), hypothecation / pari passu charge on all present and future current
assets of the Company including stock-in-trade, trade debts, lien on import documents
and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT

2018 2017
LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Long term finances ' 23 660,714,596 830,100,202
Liabilities against assets subject |
1o finance lease 24 8,761,358 3,342,514
| 669,475,954 833,442,716
TAXATION - Net
Opening balance 70,595,775 104,025,100
Add: provision made during the year:
current {net of tax credit for investment in
plant & machinery under section 658
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
amounting Rs.21.546 million;
{2017: Rs.43.073 million) 30.2 135,429,016 70,595,775
prior years - het 1,162,378 327,679
136,591,394 70,923,454
207,187,169 174,948,554
Less: payments / adjustments made during
the year against completed assessments 71,758,153 104,352,779
Closing balance 135,429,016 70,595,775

Returns filed by the Company upto the tax year 2017 have been assessed under the self

assessment scheme envisaged in section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance).

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the
Company is mainly liable to pay tax due under sections 113 (Minimum tax on the income
of certain persons) and 154 (Tax on export proceeds) of the Ordinance.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees given by various commercial banks, in respect of financial and operational
obligations of the Company, to various institutions and corporate bodies aggregated

Rs.152.948 million as at June 30, 2018 (2017: Rs.131.551 million) and are secured
against the securities mentioned in note 28.5.

The Company is contingently kable for Rs.1.400 million Igra surcharge on account of non-
compliance of the provisions of SR0.1140(1) 97 in respect of 1,320 bales of raw cotton
imported during the year 2001. However, all the contingencies previously attached to the
particular case have already been decided in favour of the Company. Since Alternate
Dispute Resolution Committee's recommendations and subsequent decisions by Federal
Board of Revenue were in favour of the Company, the management is confident that the

liability of lgra surcharge on account of exportation of goods so manufactured from
imported cotton will positively be waived-off.
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The Company has filed a case before the Sindh High Court (SHC) against imposition of
infrastructure cess levied by the Excise and Taxation Department, Karachi (the
Department) under section 9 of the Sindh Finance Act, 1994 on imports made. As per the
judgement of SHC, 50% of the demand would be paid by the Company while for the
remaining 50%, guarantees would be issued in favour of the Department. As per the
aforesaid judgement, the Company is paying the said 50% of demand on every import
made and has arranged bank guarantees from Meezan Bank Ltd.,, Habib Bank Ltd.,
National Bank of Pakistan and Bank Alfalah Ltd. favouring the Department for Rs.17.486
million (2017: Rs.17.486 million), Rs.15 million {(2017: Rs.15 million), Rs.3.743 million
(2017: Rs.3.743 million) and Rs.12 million (2017 Rs.7 million) respectively. The
Company ha's'challenged the said judgement before the Supreme Court of Pakistan and
the legal advisors are confident that ultimately the judgement will be in favour of the

Company and accordingly no provision needs to be made in the financiat statements for
the year ended June 30, 2018.

Foreign bills discounted outstanding as at June 30, 2018 aggregated Rs.469.078 million
(2017: Rs.473.419 million).

2018 2017
_ Rupees Rupees
Commitments in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts - sale 0 52,830,000
Commitments for irrevocable letters of credit:
- capital expenditure 281,092,632 122,219,250
- others 154,446,775 22,922,520
435,539,407 145,141,770

A financial institution, on behalf of the Company, has issued stand-by letters of credit
(SBLCs) aggregating Rs.87.956 million (2017.Rs.1,000 miflion) in favour of lenders of
Fatima Energy Ltd. (FEL - an Associated Company) to honour the commitment of

injection / investment in the equity of FEL by the Company. These SBLCs are valid upto
April 2019,

SALES - Net

Export 6,583,918,463 4,573,827,316
Local 7,000,456,767 6,583,682,001
Waste

220,863,995 193,793,273

13,805,239,225
137,965,128

11,351,302,590

Less: Commission 105,542 850

13,667,274,097 11,245,759,740

Add: Weaving, doubling and sizing income

472,300 15,564,519

Export rebate 0 683,329
Export duty drawback 247,886,785 79,726,073
248,359,685 85,973,921

Less: Sales tax 1,772,917 0

13,913,860,865

11,341,733,661
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Raw materials cofnsumed 331 9,551,485,191 8,283,635,742
Stores and spares 327,822,306 299,961,343
Packing materials consumed 89,825,945 80,946,331
Salaries, wages and benefits 33.3 822,345,075 732,855,770
Power and fuel 1,295,323,080 1,065,914,982
Repairs and maintenance 31,714,882 17,816,034
Depreciation 7.3 233,105,235 217,606,120
Insurance 33,649,380 29,464 259
Utilities 484,730 450,060
Others 65,906,273 45,681,450
12,451,662,097 10,774,332,001
Adjustment of work-in-process
Opening 183,721,862 166,946,118
Closing 12 (248,384,218) (183,721,862)
(64,662,356) (16,775,744)
Cost of goods manufactured 12,386,999,741 10,757,556,347
Adjustment of finished goods |
Opening stock 1,069,075,374 669,158,447
Closing stock 12 (887,857,766) (1,069,075,374)
| 181,217,608 (399,916,927)
12,568,217,349 10,357,639,420
Raw materials consumed
Opening stock _ 1,756,403,613 1,510,244,103
Purchases and purchase expenses 9,873,412,929 8,529,795 252
| 11,629,816,542 10,040,039 355
Less: closing stock 12

(2,085,889,117) (1,756,403 613)

9,543,927,425 8,283,635,742
7,557,766 0

Cotton cess

33.2 9,651,485,191 8,283,635,742

Raw materials consumed include Rs.39,288 841 {2017: Rs.38,836,109) relating to the
cost of yarn and cotton sold during the year.

Salarigs, wages and benefits include Rs.58,542, 746 (2017: Rs.49,715,100) in respect of
staff retirement benefits - gratuity. '
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DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING
EXPENSES

Ocean freight and shipping

Local freight

Export de\éelopment surcharge
Forwarding and clearing expenses
Marketing expenses

Other expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Travelling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Entertainment
Utilities
Communication
Printing and stationery
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Vehicles' running and maintenance
Fees, subscription and periodicals
Auditors' remuneration:

- statutory audit

- half yearly review

- out of pocket expenses

Legal and professional charges -other than Auditors

Depreciation
Amortisation
General

Expense for the year includes staff retirement benefits -

(2017: Rs.5,155,0786).

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Dividend -

Mark-up on advances to
Associated Companies

Payable balances written-back

Exchange fluctuation gain - net

Realised gain on forward foreign
exchange contracts

Income from non-financial assets

- Gain on dilution in investments

Others

Note

35.1

7.3
B

36.1

36.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees
48,781,790 30,587,699
41,239,555 31,934,524
13,404,996 11,188,200
28,788,497 23,641,447
8,238,991 7,914,752
3,178,700 - 11,263 457
143,632,529 116,530,079
89,118,819 75,796,251
15,282,117 10,635,170
5,097,082 4,509,673
1,398,298 1,252,902
1,910,032 1,477,466
4,392,969 4,102,633
2,258,115 2,037,380
969,194 2,314,236
8,863,645 9,601,057
7,921,084 6,767,357
5,805,582 5,216,105
1,000,000 1,000,000
247,500 225,000
100,000 233,510
1,347,500 1,458,510
1,979,295 1,261,000
15,682,966 15,492,116
946,230 946,230
3,048,770 3,149,869
166,021,698 146,017,955

gratuity amounting Rs.7,148,811

5,906,624 8,631,790
2,655,650 12,949,967
10,494,491 0
79,775,877 57,766
0 1,743,833

385,000 0
130,187 50,099
99,347,829 23,333,455
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36.1  This represents dividend received on short term investments made in Fatima Fertilizer
Company Ltd.

36.2 This represents mark-up amounting Rs.1,033,274 (2017: Rs.10,661,918) on advance
given to Fatima Energy Ltd., Rs.78,029 (2017: Rs.84,578) and Rs.1,544,347 (2017:
Rs.2,203,471) on short term loan given to Reliance Commodities (Pvt.) Ltd. and advance
given to Fatima Transmission Company Ltd. respectively.

37. OTHER EXPENSES 2018 2017

' Note Rupees Rupees
Donations . 371 22,585,560 15,168,840
Loss an disposal of operating

fixed assets - net 75 1,738,938 925,952

Realised loss on forward foreign
exchange contracts 1,805,772 0
Receivable balances written-off 627,750 0
Workers® (profit) participation fund 26.3 23,254,434 9,479,036
50,012,454 25,573,828

371  Mian Mukhtar A. Sheikh Trust, Multan (a Charitable Institution) is administered by the

following directors of the Company:

- Mr. Fawad Ahmed Mukhtar - Mr. Faisal Ahmed Mukhtar

- Mr. Fazal Ahmed Sheikh
The Company, during the year, has donated Rs. 20.200 million (2017: Rs.13.300 million)
to this Trust.

38. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:

- long term finances 157,156,073 186,611,993
- liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 1,251,210 731,423
- short term borrowings 407,968,620 295,744 445
- short term loans from Associated Companies 3,958,262 3,838,701
Interest on workers' {profit)
participation fund 26.3 353,262 317,034
Bank charges and commission 51,516,141 52,277,579
- 622,203,568 539,521,175
39. © TAXATION
Current
- for the year 30 135,429,016 70,595 775
- prior year 30 1,162,378 327 679
Deferred (5,719,449) {4,357,963)
130,871,945 66,565,491
39.1

Management assessment on sufficiency of provision for income taxes

A comparison of provision on account o
the last three tax years is as follows:

f income tax with most recent fax assessment for
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2017 2016 20156
I ---------- Rupees ---------- I
Provision in financial statements for income tax 70,695,775 104,025,100 10,368,854
Tax assessed as per most recent tax assessment 74,046,420 91,970,482 5,525,744

As at June 30, 2018, as per the treatments adopted in tax returns filed that are based on
the applicable tax laws and decisions of appellate authorities on simitar matters, the
provision in financial statements for income tax is sufficient as there are strong grounds
that the said freatments are likely to be accepted by the tax authorities.

40. EARNINGS PER SHARE
There is no dilutive effect on earnings per share 2018 2017

of the Company, which is based on: Rupees

Profit after taxation attributable
to ordinary shareholders

Rupees

310,579,076 101,217,999
-------- No. of shares --—---

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 30,810,937 30,810,937
Rupees Rupees
Earnings per share - basic 10.08 3.29

41.  SEGMENT INFORMATION
41.1 Reportable segments

The management has determined the operating segments of the Company on the basis
of products being produced.

The Company's reportable segments are as follows:

- Spinning segment - production of different qualities of yarn using natural and
artificial fibres.

- Weaving segment - production of different qualities of grey fabrics using yarn.

Information regarding the Company's reportable segments is presented below.
Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as management believes
that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments
relative to other companies that operate within these industries.

41.2 Information about reportable segments

Spinning Weaving Total
2018 2017 2018 047 2018 2017
Rupees

External revemis 4TT4MTA00 3697173408 9,139,413,764  7B44560253 13913860865 113417336651
inter-segment revenue 28528341810 3226362789 0 0 2952834181 3,226,362,789
Cost of sales (7.043,137,914)  (6417.054318) (5,519,079.438) (3940585102} (12,568,217,348)  {10357,630.420)
Inter-segment cost of sales 0 0 (2962834181) (3226362,789)  (2,952,834,161) (3,226,362 780}
Distribution and marketing

eXPENses (30,358,929) (23,702,696 (113,273,600) (92827,384) (143,632,529 (116,530,079)
Administrative expenses (82,860,533} {12,961,932) (83,361,165) (73,056,023} (166,021,898) (146,017 955)
Otherincome 12,504,100 10,506,283 86,843,729 21312 99,347,829 23,333,455
Other expenses (19,950,614) (14,756,583) (36,061,840) {10,817 245) {50,012,454) (25,573 828)
Finance cost (322,940,955}  (282,341450)  (288,262813)  (257.179,716) (622,203,568) (538.521,175)
Profit before taxation and

share of loss of Associates 234136437 123,315,493 128,364,659 56,460,168 483,121,096 179,784,659
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's
accounting policies described in note 5 to the financial statements. Distribution &
marketing expenses, administrative expenses, other income and other expenses are
allocated on the basis of actual amounts incurred / earned for the segments. Finance
cost relating to long term finances is also allocated on the basis of purpose of finances
for which these are obtained and finance cost relating to short term borrowings is
allocated on the basis of working capital requirements of the segments. This is the

measure reported to management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Reconciliation of reportable - 2018 2017
segment revenues and profit Rupees Rupees

Total revenue from reportable segments 16,866,695,046 14,568,096,450
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (2,952,834,181) (3,226,362,789)
Profit _ 13,913,860,865 11,341,733,661
Total profit of reportable segments 463,121,096 179,784,659
Share of loss from Associated Companies (21,670,075) (12,001,169)
Tax for the year {130,871,945) (66,565,491)
Consolidated profit 310,579,076 101,217,999

Segment assets and liabilities

Reportable segments’ assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets and liabilities as
follows:

Spinning Weaving Total
For the year endsd June 30, 2018; Rupees
Segment assets for reportable segment
- Operafing fived assels 1307250500 LM7S61544 5624813085
- Stores, spares and looss tools 136,558,692 84,165,566 200,724,258
- Stock-intrade 1940450266 127289883 3222431104
5,093,242489 3674425945 9067868414
Unallocated corporate assets _ 4,199,240, 244
Total assets as per statement of financial position 13,266,308,658
Segment liabilities for reportable segmant 409,095,008 386537981  79634748%
Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,904,641,476
Total Viabilities as per statement of financial position 9,865,116,312
For the year ended June 30, 2017:
Segment assets for reportable segment
- Operating fixed assets T MBI 220754069 5344873287
« Stores, spares and loose tools 11917432 60,223,957 182,141,103
-Stoqk-in-trade 1905340714 1103858935 3,009,200,848
SAM4T08464  B301606775  BSIEME2%
Unaliocated corporate assets _ 4,766,368 374
Totzl assets as per statement of financial position _ 11303284 43
Segment liabiliies for reportable segment | 4A5210,013  3025M,438 778,711,545
Unaliocated corporate liabilities 1,265,166,229
Totalliabilities as per statement of financial position 84879714
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41.10 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2018 are lo

41.11
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For the purposes of monitbring segment performance and allocating resources between
segments

- operating property, plant & equipment, stock-in-trade and stores, spares & loose

tools are allocated to reportable segment while all other assets are held under
unallocated corporate assets: and

long term finances, short term borrowings and liabilities against assets subject 1o
finance lease are allocated to reportable segment and all other liabilities, i.e. staff

retirement benefit - gratuity, trade & other payables, taxation and accrued mark-up
are held under unallocated corporate liabiities.

Gross revenue from major products and services

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Fabric export sales 5,465,840,218 3,794,856,449
Yarn export sales 1,118,078,246 778,970,867
Fabric local sales 3,565,568,793 3,822,743,661
Yam local sales 3,397,438,793 2,719,134,047
Cotton and polyester local sales 37,449,181 41,804,293

Waste local sales 220,863,994 193,793,273

13,805,239,225 11,351,302,580

Gross revenue from segment
Spinning 1,929,283,941 1,859,772,723
Weaving 4,099,985,644 4,079,579,408

6,029,269,585 6,039,352,131

Geographical information

The Company's gross revenue from external customers by geographical location is
detailed below:

Pakistan 7,221,320,762 6,754,638,323
Asia 4,842,192,621 3,580,565,250
Europe 1,413,314,592 899,638,861
Africa 328,411,250 116,460,156

13,805,239,225 11,351,302,590

cated and operating in

Pakistan.
Other segment information .
Spinning Weaving Total
For the year ended Jure 30, 2018; Rupees
Capital expenditure 45,099,590 200,416,360 245 515858
Depreciation
Cost of sales _ 137,567,514 9 537,721 233,105,235
Administrativa expenses - 8422798 7,260,168 16,682,966

145,950,312 102,797,389 248,788,201
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Spinning Weaving Total
For the year ended June 30, 2017: Rupess
Capital expendimra 124,132,513 36079 M5 448,011,958
Depregiation
Cost of sales 31918, 407 79,621,143 247,806,120
Administrafive expenses 9,741.5% - 5,740,580 15,452,110
141,119,343 §5,378,293 23308823
42, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 2018 2017
ACTIVITIES Rupees Rupees
Profit before taxation 441,451,021 167,783,490
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation ' 248,788,201 233,098,236
Amortisation 946,230 946,230
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity ' 65,691,557 54 B70,176
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 1,738,938 025,052
Share of loss from Associates . 21,670,075 12,001,169
Interest on workers' (profit) participation fund 353,262 317,034
Provision for workers' (profit} participation fund 23,254,434 9,479,036
Receivable balances written-off 627,750 0
Payable balances written-back (10,494,491) 0
Finance cost 21,850,306 539,204,141
Realised loss / (gain) on forward
foreign exchange contracts 1,805,772 (1,743,833)
Gain on dilution of investments (385,000} 0

1,417,298,055 1,016,881 ,631
Effect on cash flow due to

working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (38,583,155) 431,151
Stock-in-trade (212,930,252) (662,852,181)
Trade debts (1,403,947,053) (75,593,663)
Loans and advances - 44,464,603 83,955,546
Prepayments and other receivables 3,102,196 11,353,320
Tax refunds due from the Government

(excluding income tax) (166,506,499) (129,996,432)
Increase in trade and other payables 447,376,895 17,693,310
_ (1,327,023,265) (755,008,949)

Cash geherated from operations 90,274,790 261,872,682
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall
risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Companys finance department evaluates
financial risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
investment of excess liquidity, provided by the board of directors.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to currency risk
on import of plant & machinery, raw materials and stores & spares denominated in U S,

Dollar, JPY, Euro and CHF. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk for U.S.
Dollar, JPY, Euro and CHF is as follows:

2018 Rupees UsS§ Euro JPY CHF
Trade deﬁts - 1,519,112,032 12,500,405 0 0 0
Bank balances 564,244 4,646 0 0 0
Short term export finances (243,267,400} (2,000,000) 0 0 0
Bills payable (130,344,918) (1,033,697} (7,484) {3,276,500) 0
Gross balance sheet exposure 1,146,063,958 9,479,354 {7,484} (3,276,500} 0
Qutstanding letters of credit 435,539,407 1,127,811 37,028 261,421,248 56,246
Net exposﬂre 1,581,603,365 10,807,165 20,544 258,144,748 56,246
2017

Trade debis 234,752,283 2,240,289 0 0 0
Bank balances 3,539,873 377 0 0 0
Short term export finances - (405,260,005} (3,859,619) ] H 0
Gross balance sheet exposure (166,937,843) {1,585,553) 0 0 0
Qutstanding letters of credit (145,141,770} (1,382,303) 0 0 0
Forward foreign exchange contracts (52,830,000} (503,143) D 0 0
Ned exposure (364,909,619} (3,470,999 0 il 0

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date rate

2018 2017 2018 2017
U.S. $to Rupee : 113.38 10465 121.47121.6 104.80/ 105
Euro to Rupee 130.42 - 141.33/141.57 -

JPY to Rupee 1.008 - 1.097/1.099
CHF to Rupee 115.29 - 122.111122.32
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Sensitivity'analysis

At June 30, 2018, if Rupee had strengthened by 10% against U.S. Dollar, Euro and JPY
with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been higher / (lower)

by the amount shown below mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain / (loss) on
translation of financial assets and liabilities.

Effect on profit for the year:

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
U.8.% to Rupee (115,079,358) 16,616,595
'Euro to Rupee | 105,973 0
JPY to Rupee 360,087 0

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. At the reporting date, the
inferest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
Effective Carrying amount
mark-uprate =000 o ~ (Rupees}) =w--emv
Y %
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate instruments
Long term finances 5.00% to 12.7%  5.00% 10 12.70% 492,216,818 334,608,158
Variable rate instruments
Long term finances 5.00% to 9.04% 728% t012.70% 1,367,923,229 2,257 835,270
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 1.65% to 8.21% 7.62% to 12.41% 23,165,184 4,612,186
Short term barrowings 662%t0842% B8.64%1t07.78% 5821,345.019  4,176.395,926
Short term export finances 1.30%to3%  0.90%to 4.00% 243 267.400 405.260 005

$

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date
would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At June 30, 2018, if interest rate on variable rate financial liabilities had been 1% higher /
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been Rs.74.557 million (2017: Rs.68.441 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of
higher / fower interest expense on variable rate financial liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit
before taxation for the year and liabilities of the Company.
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Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financia!
instruments traded in the market. Price risk arises from the Company's investments in
ordinary shares of listed companies. To manage the price risk arising from the aforesaid
investments, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock price

movement.
Sensitivity analysis

A 10% increase / decrease in share prices at the year-end would have increased /
decreased the fair value reserve on available-for-sale investments as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Effect on equity 8,505,541 8,844 188

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit /
equity and assets of the Company.

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control
credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their
abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of
the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, short term investments and balances with
banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management
performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past
experience and other relevant factors. Sales tenders and credit terms are approved by
the tender approval committee. Where considered necessary, advance payments are
obtained from certain parties. Export sales made to major customers are secured through
letters of credit. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days in respect
of yarn and fabric parties to reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited
as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

All investing transactions are settled / paid for upon delivery as per the advice of
investment committee. The Company’s policy is to enter into financial instrument contract
by following internal guidelines such as approving counterparties and approving credits.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2018 along with comparative is
tabulated below: '
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2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 21,019,130 19,725,230
Trade debts 2,005,912,705 603,771,424
Loans and advances 60,648,011 133,245,236
Other receivables 25,746,768 27,711,023
Short term investments 85,055,412 88,441,877
Bank balances 74,034,200 91,301,512
| 2,272,416,276 964,196,302

Trade debts exposure by geographic region

is as follows:

Domestic ‘ 486,800,673 368,989,141
Export 1,519,112,032 234,782,283
2,005,912,705 603,771,424

The maximum exposure o credit risk before any credit enhancements for trade debts at
the reporting date by type of counterparty was:

Fabric customers against:

- export sales 1,519,112,032 234,782,283

- local sales 87,574,087 138,698,357
Yarn customers against local sales 399,226,586 230,290,784
2,005,912,705 603,771,424

The majority of export debts of the Company are situated in Asia and Europe.
The ageing of frade debts at the year-end was as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 1,519,112,030 227,641,635
Past due 0-30 days 342,709,406 229,191,647
Past due 30-150 days 136,563,732 129,113,525
Past due 150-360 days 3,137,074 10,683,969
Past due 360 days 4,390,463 7,140,648

2,005,912,705 603,771,424

Based on past experience, the Company's management believes that no impairment loss
allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts as debts aggregating Rs.1,478.819
million have been realised subsequent to the year-end and for other trade debts there are
reasonable grounds to helieve that the amounts will be realised in short course of time.

Out of total trade debts, 76% (2017: 38%) comprise of foreign debtors that are secured
against letters of credit and contracts. Local trade debts include customers with very
good credit history and are regular in their payments. The management continuously
monitors the repayment capacity and intention of their debtors and extends the credit
periods to their customers according to their credit history.
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Bank balances

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings assigned to them as follows:

Rating Rating 2018 2017
Shortterm Longterm agency Rupees Rupees
Bank Alfalah Ltd. A1+ At JCRVIS 14300818 4214574
The Bank of Khyber A A JCR-VIS 298,075 35,843
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd. _ A-t At JCR-VIS 3,556,734 3,085,536
Habib Bank Ltd. A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS 226947 9,764,089
JS Bank Ltd. Al+ AA PACRA 2876058 2,250,835
Meezan Bank Lid. A1+ Ah+ JCRMIS 2,109,598 26311242
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Lid. A+ AAA PACRA 2,504 140,619
Askari Bank Ltd, At AA+ PACRA 6,184,636 2,220,081
Faysal Bank Lt AA A-1+ PACRA 235,312 234312
Dubai Istamic Bank Pakistan Ltd. AA- A1 JORVIS 2,110,239 171,128
Summit Bank Lid. A A- JCR-VIS 536,012 518,769
Bankislami Pakistan Ltd. A1 A+ PACRA 2,817,619 165,600
Bank Al Habib Ltd. Al+ AA+ PACRA 17484 1,133,553
Allied Bank Ltd. Al+ AAA PACRA 0 51,395
Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd. Al+ AA+ PACRA 58682159 7448677
MCB Bank Ltd. Al+ AAA PACRA 483,278 553,434
National Bank of Pakistan AAA A1+ JCR-VIS 1,112,707 6,157,868
Sindh Bank Lid, A1+ AA JCR-V1S 3,061,309 996,861
United Bank Lid. AAA A1+ JCR-VIS 2,059,802 25,845,958
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA PACRA 26,183,207 138

74,034,200 91,301,512

43.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity 1s to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.
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Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Carrytng amount Contractual cash Less than 1 year Between | §years and
flows 110§ years above
2018 Rupees
Long term finances 1,860,140,047 2148974635 638,137,813 1,294,796,730 216,040,002
Liabilitles against assets
subject to finance lease 23,165,184 25,501,829 10,250,060 ~ 15,251,769 0
Short term borrowinga 6,064,812,419 6,172,684,174 €,172,684,174 0 D
Trade and other payables 1,280,699,429 1,290,699,429 1,290,699, 429 0 0
Unclaimed dividends 16,215,618 16,215,618 16,215,618 0 0
Accrued mark-up 159,677,919 159,677,919 159,677,919 0 H
8,414,510,616 8,813,753,604 8,287,665,013 1,310,048,499 216,040,092
2017
Long lerm finances 2,592,443 428 2,696,718 229 784,500,438 1,639,664 504 272553 267
Liabilflies against assats
subject fo finance lease 4612186 4,882 459 3,588,550 1,283,908 0
Short term borrowings 4,581,655,931 4,684,654,168 4,684,854 168 0 0
Trade and ofher payables 853,826,638 853,826,639 853,826,639 0 0
Unclaimed dividends 5,080,952 5,080,952 5,080,952 0 0
Accrued mask-Up 132,680,279 132,680,279 132,680,279 0 0

8,170,279,415 8377822728 6464311026 1640958413 272,553 287

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined
on the basis of interest / mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of

interest / mark-up have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial
statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settied,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. At June 30, 2018,

the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities as disclosed in the statement of
financial position approximate to their fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted

market prices. For all other financial instruments the Company determines fair values
using valuation techniques.
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Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free rates, equity prices
and foreign currency exchange rates. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at
a fair value determination that reflecis the price of the financial instrument at the

statement of financial position date that would have been determined by market
participants acting at arm’s length.

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires
significant unobservable inputs and a higher degree of management judgment and
estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used,
determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and
selection of appropriate discount rates, etc.

The table below analyses equity instruments measured at fair value at the end of the

reporting period by level 1 in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorised: ' '

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Short term investments -
available-for-sale 85,055,412 88 441 877

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in

the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financiat statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There
were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned above.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of the Company's
business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the
Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of
Directors also monitors the levet of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard it's ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company monitors cépital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a
ratio of total debt to equity.

The debt-to-equity ratios as at June 30, were as follows:

. 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Total debt 7,963,474,837 7,178,711,545

Total equity and debt 11,365,267,183 10,038,115,984

Debt-to-equity ratio 70% 72%
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Director Key management personnel
2018 2017 2018 2017

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Mans_lgerial remuneration 3,339,600 4,007,520 11,117,402 7.543 376
House rent allowance D 0 2,223,480 1,508,675
Medical 0 0 1,111,740 754,338
Utilities and other allowances 0 o 2,140,100 1,452,099
Bonus ) 0 824,250 379,122

3,339,600 4,007 520 17,416,972 11,637,610
Number of persons | 1 1 7 5

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive
as per the Companies Act, 2017.

The Company provides its directors and key management personnel with free use of
maintained cars.

Meeting fees of Rs.300 thousand (2017: Rs.255 thousand) were also paid to two
(2017: One) non-working directors during the year.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of associated undertakings and key management
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries-out transactions with
various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under
receivables and payables and remuneration of the key management personnel is

disclosed in note 45. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

Description of
transaction

Fazal Cloth Mills Ltd.
Purchase of goods and services
Sale of goods and services

Fazal Weaving Miils Ltd.
Purchase of goods and services

Raliance Commodities {Pvt) Ltd.
Mark-up income

Advance made

Advance received

Fatima Sugar Mills Ltd.
Mark-up expense
Advances received
Advances repaid

Sale of fixed assets

Fatima Energy Ltd.
Mark-up income

Funds received
Stand-by letters of credit

Mlan Mukhtar A. Sheikh
Trust, Multan
Donations made

Fatima Fertilizer Company Ltd.
Dividend Income

Fatima Transmission Co. Ltd.
Advances made

Mark-up income

Purchase of ordinary shares

Pakarab Fertilizer L_td.
Purchase of services

All trransactions with related parties have been carried

conditions.

MNature of 2018
relationship Rupees
Associate
22,857,306
3,066,B00
Associate
28,289,200
Associate
78,029
2,300,000
2,300,000
Associate
3,956,368

1,208,700,000
1.204,700,000

O
Associate
1,033,274
363,703
67,956,350
Associate
20,200,000
Related party ~
5,906,624
Related party *
O
1,542,553
o
Realated party *
(8]

* These are related parties due to common directorship

2017
Rupees

36,833,472
1,490,000

Q

84 578
5,000,000
5.000,000

3,833,701
650,000,000
774,893,033

127 520

10,661,918
0
1,000,000,000

13,300,000
8,531,790

15,314,068
2,203,472
71,785,000

979,385

-out on commercial terms and
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ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liabjlities
Long term Short tfarm Lease finances  Dividend Total
finances borrowings
Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2017 2,582,443 428  4,581,655,931 4,612,186 7,183,772 497
Changes from financinp activities
Finances obtained 124,233 424 0 26,484,500 150,717,924
Finances repaid (856,536,805) 0 (7,931,502 {864,468,307)
Finances obtalned - nat of repayments 0 1,498513,675 0 1,498,513,675
Dividend declared 0 0 0 46,216,405
Dividend paid i 0 0 (35081,739)  (35061,739)
' (732,303,381} 1,498,513,675 18,552,998 795,917 958

Balance as at Juna 30, 2018 1,860,140,047  6,080,169,606 23,165,184 7,979,690,455
CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2018 2017
Unit 1 (Weaving)
Number of looms installed 104 104
Capacity after conversion into 50 picks - Meters 21,520,630 21,520,630
Actual production of fabrics after

conversion into 50 picks - Meters 21,352,892 16,222,826
Weaving conversion 0 473,494
Unit 2 (Weaving)
Number of looms installed _ 204 204
Capacity after conversion into 50 picks - Meters 52,290,325 48,640,896
Actual production of fabrics after
~ conversion into 50 picks - Meters 50,834,547 46,946,058
Unit 5 (Weaving)
Number of looms installed 40 40
Capacity after conversion into 50 picks - Meters 10,653,513 10,653,513
Actual production of fabrics after

conversion into 50 picks - Meters 10,028,434 9,731 663

Under utilisation of available weaving capacity was due to:

- Electricity shut downs

- Due to normal maintenance
Unit 3 (Spinning)
Number of spindles installed
Capacity after conversion into 20 count - Kgs
Actual production of yarn after

canversian into 20 count - Kgs
Unit 4 (Spinning)
Number of spindles installed
Capacity after conversion into 20 count - Kgs
Actual production of yarn after

conversion into 20 count - Kgs

- Change of articles required
- Width loss due to specification of the cioth

14,400
4,023,142

3,619,438

47,520
16,433,195

15,366,674

14,400
4,586,454

3,532,496

47,520
16,433,195

15,270,103

Under utilisation of available spinning capacity of Unit 3 and Unit 4 was due to:

- Electricity shut downs
- Processing mix of coarser and finer counts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA4 TEMENTS

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2018 2017
------ Numbers ------
Number of persons employed as at June 30,
- permanent 2,151 2,515
- contractual 255 181
*2,406 *2,696
*This includes 2,280 (2017: 2,573) number of factory employees
Average number of employees during the year
- permanent 2112 2,489
- contractual 229 172
' 2,341 2,661
**This includes 2,214 (2017: 2,540) number of factory employees
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on by the

board of directors of the Company.
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on has proposed a final

cash dividend of Rs. per share (2017: Rs.1.50 per share) for the year ended June 30,
2018. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 da not include the effect
of proposed dividend amounting Rs. (2017: Rs.46.216 million), which
will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2019 after
approval by the members in the annual general mesting to be held on

FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for

the purposes of comparison; however, except for the following, no significant re-
classifications / re-statements have been mada to these financia) statements-

Re-classification from: Re-classified to: Before re- After re-
classification classification
Rupees Rupees
Other receivables Accrued mark-up 121,479,602 132,680 279
Taxrefunds due from
the Government Taxation 0 70,585,775
Trade and other payables Unclaimed dividends 9,060,952 5,060,952

Also refer contents of note 6 re

garding restatement of revaluation surplus on freehold
land, '

Director Chief Financial Officer

S\
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1} IBAN nurnber
2) Title of Bank Account;

3) Bank Acoaunt number;
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INCOME TAX RETURN FILING STATUS

Confirmation for filing status of Income Tax return for application of revised rates

Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2015,

The Company Secretary
Reliance Weaving Mills Ltd
2" Floor Trust Plaza L.M.Q. Road

Multan
Dear Sir
[ Mr./Mrs./Ms S/0, DO, W0
hereby confirm that | am registered as National Tax Payer and my relevant detail is given
below:-
CNIC # in case Income Tax
Folio No./CDC Name NTN No. of Individual & return for the
Ajc No. CUINin case of | year filed
Company

|

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct.

Signatures of Shareholder

Note:
* Shareholders are also requested to communicate aforesaid information to
relevant members of Stock Exchange & CDC (in case of CDC Account
holders).

*» Please attach attested copy of CNIC and receipt of Income Tax return filed



Form of Proxy

1iWe

of

being a memberls) of Reliance Weaving Mills Limited hold

Ordinary Sharss hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss

of

or falling him / her

of

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote lor me / us and on
my/ our behalf at the 28th  Annual General Mesting of the Company 10 be held an Monday, October 29, 2018 at

Company's Regislered Office, 2nd Floor Trust Flaza. LMQC Road, Multan. and / or any adjournment

therscf.
As witness myfour hand/seal this day of 2018.
Signature of Member
in the presencs ot
Sighatures Signatures
Name Name
Adrass Address
Folio No. CDC Account No.
Participant 1.D. | Account No.
Signature on
Five Rupees
; | Revenue Slamp
' The Signature should
agres with Lhe
specimen registered
' wilh the Company
Notes:

1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received att

Road Mullan not later than 48 hours belare the ti
withessed.

he Company's Registered Office Znd Fioor, Trust Plaza, L.M.Q
me for the meeting and must be duly slamped, signed and

Any individual beneficial owner of CRC, entitled to attend and vote at this meating,
Passport, to prove histher identity, and in case ol Proxy must enclose an attested copy
Representatives of corporate membars should bring the usiral documents required for s

must bring his/her NIC or
of his/her NIC or Passport,
uch purpose.

In addilion to the above the following requirements have to be met,
(i} Attesred copies of CNIC or the passpaort of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the
proxy form.

{il  The proxy shall produce his ariginal CNIC or ariginal passport at the time of lhe meeting.
{iily In case of a carporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of altorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted {unless it has been provided earlier alongwith proxy form 1o the Company).
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E-Voting as per the Companies {E-Voting) Regulations, 2016

AN, of

Mills Ltd, holder of
No.

execution officer

. being a member of Reliance Weaving

Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No./CDC Account

hereby opt for e-voting through intermediary and hereby consent the appointment of

as proxy and will exercise e-voting as per the Companies

(E-Voting} Regulations, 2016 and hereby demand for poll for resolutions.

My secured email address is

. pPlease sand login details,

password and other requiremenis through email,

Signed under my/our hand this day of

Signature of Member

Signed in the presence of:

Signature of Witness

Name:

Name:

20

Signature of Withess

CNIC/Passport No:

Address:

co Lo LI By S, A i

rj_e./. S atus e TS E-voting 2Ll f’i_./u

CNIC/Passporl No:

Address:

L E-voting b<E-voting

/u;KfCDC//“JJJ’Jf',usr'ls

=S w15 ,2016 J‘J::.J’uruf,-u-dy Lo s ;//V/’iExecuhonL, (S-S5
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INVESTORS’ EDUCATION

In compliance with tha Securilies and Exchan
9, 2015, Investors’ attention

ge Commission of Pakistar’s SRO 924111/2015 dated Septernber
is invited (o the lollawing information message:
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